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BUSINESS REVIEW

Results

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$1,820 million (2005: HK$1,647 million), representing an increase of 10.5%.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company significantly increased by
56.6% to HK$79 million. The profit was after deduction of non-recurrent
expenses which include employer share option expenses of HK$3.4 million,
written off of pre-operation expenses for Hyundai Division of HK$4.2 million,
and under accrued construction cost for Panyu property development of
HK$2.3 million, and the loss on the closure of the plastic factory in Nantou of
HK$1.0 million. The management anticipated that the total non-recurrent
expenses of HK$10.9 million would not occur subsequently.

Final Dividend

The Directors have declared a final dividend of HK3 cents per share for the
year ended 31 March 2006 {2005: HK 2 cents) to those shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 18 September 2006. Subject to
the approval of the final dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
dividend will be paid to the sharehalders on or about 25 September 2006.

Electronics Division

Despite the draop in turngver resulting from the downsizing of low-margin
audio and OEM products during the first quarter, the Group's turnaver has
recorded satisfactory growth since the second quarter of the financial year.
There is an increasing market demand for video products such as portable
TFT BVD, DVD and DVD television combos, which generate reasonable profit
margins than audio products. Thaugh the prices of certain components like
plastic resin and metal remained high during the year, the price fluctuation
was minimal. Together with the stable prices of electronic components, the
products sold during the year have achieved better profit margins.

Securities Trading
During the year, the transactions of the division were not active, only recorded
a turnover of about HK$37.5 million.

Property Development
The transactions during the year were not active and only recorded an under-
provided construction cost of about HK$2.3 million.
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PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to implement its existing successful strategy by
facusing on high-technology products with better profit margin while
downsizing low-margin audio and OEM products. With its emphasis on video
products, the Group plans to launch the LCDTV series by the end of the year.
Due to the soaring market demand for video products, the Group's orders on
hand have increased significantly compared to last year.

In addition to traditional video products, the Group is also developing the
“Youth electronics” series which brought in considerable orders. The series
is launched under the brands of well-known cartoon characters, such as
“TEENAGE MUTANT NINJA TURTLES”, “DORA THE EXPLORER", "SPONGE
BOB SQUAREPANTS", "HELLO KITTY", "BRATZ" and "STRAWBERRY
SHORTCAKES”, to capture the youth market. The Group also plans to expand
this line of business. With the additional 330,000 square feet in the factories
located in Panyu and Nantou, Shenzhen, the Group's production capacity is
expected to increase by approximately 50% this year. In order to meet the
requirement of its production scale for the coming year, the Group plans to
build a new facility with a site area of approximately 300,000 square feet on
a piece of land with 40 acres adjacent to its existing Panyu factory by the
end of this year.

Following the acquisitions of equity interests in THE SINGING MACHINE
COMPANY INC. and Interforce Limited, the Group's marketing capability is
expected to be enhanced with the synergies created. Through the outlets of
THE SINGING MACHINE COMPANY INC., the Group is able to market its
products to second tier retailing chain stores in the United States. With its
comprehensive logistics management, THE SINGING MACHINE COMPANY
INC. also helps the Group to explore the retail market in the United States by
selling directly in USA to leading local retailers. On the other hand, the
research department of Interforce Limited also strengthened the product
research and development capability of the Group. With the sales experience
in the European markets of Interforce Limited, the Group may further
strengthen its marketing ability in the region.

As for components, despite the sustained high prices of plastic materials
and certain metal components, the prices of other components have already
stabilized and settled on a downward trend. The Group has made hedging
arrangement against certain plastic materials to maintain a stable profit
margin. Besides, the market demand for electronic consumer products, in
particular video products, has been growing. In view of the above, the Group
is confident of achieving a strong turnaver for the year ending 31 March
2007.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained strong. As at 31 March 2006
cash and deposits and marketable securities amounted to HK$114 million,
as compared to HK$91 million last year.

Gearing ratio, calculated as total bank borrowings to shareholders’ fund was
0.3 (2005: 0.16), and net bank borrowings as a percentage to shareholders’
fund was 0.13 for the year {2005: 0.07). Current ratio calculated as current
assets to current liabilities decreased from 2.0 in prior year to 1.64 for this
year.

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by a combination of retained eamings and
bank borrowings. The Company issued new shares as a result of the exercise
of certain share options of the Company and obtained a cash inflow of about
HK$2.2 million.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group's total borrowings of about HK$221 million
(2005: HK$109 million), all were repayable within one year.

The Group's transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. The exposure to exchange risk was minimal.

[tis estimated that the change of exchange rate of Renminbi has no significant
impact to the Group for the time being.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2008, the Group pledged certain assets with carrying value of
HK$123,391,000 {2005: HK$64,565,000) to secure the general credit facilities
granted ta the Company and the margin accounts with brokers.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2008, the Group had contingent ligbilities for bills discounted
with recourse of nil (2005: HK$1,350,000).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies by the Group.

STAFF

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had a total staff of 6,662 of which 5,518
were employed in the PRC for the Group's manufacturing and distribution
business.

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance, retirement
scheme, discretionary banus and share option scheme and also provides in-
house training programmes and external training sponsorship.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, aged 58, is the Chairman and Managing Director of
the Group. He has been in the Group for 36 years and has aver 36 years of
management experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. Lau Sak Kai, Anthony, aged 56, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, is
the Group’s Directar responsible for the Group's overall production
management in China. His main duties, besides the management of PRC
production activities, include the respansibility of loca! sales in China and
the planning and exploitation of new projects in China. He has been in the
Group for 34 years.

Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy, aged 58, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, is
also one af the Group's Production Oirectors responsible for the Group’s overall
production management in China. In addition, he is in charge of the Research
& Development of the Group. He has been in the Group for 34 years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-executive
Birector of the Group since 1988 and re-designated as non-executive director
of the Company on 28 September 2004. He has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 36 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-executive
Directar of the Group since 1998. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
the University of Exeter, and is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accauntants in England and Wales, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in
management and property development.

Mr. Chan Chak Chung, aged 48, was appointed director of the Company since
30 September 2004. He is a qualified accountant and has about 25 years
experience in the public accountancy profession. He holds a Master degree
in Business Administration. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom.

Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck, aged 50, was appointed director of the Company
since 30 September 2004. He has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong
for aver 24 years. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts from the University of
Ontario, Canada. He is also an independent non-executive director of ITC
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2006 7
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IEEAE Z+tR BBREEEZRT E M LauYat Tung, aged 27, the eldest son of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, joined
RZBEZENALER ETEFEE-FR  the Group in 2003 as assistant to Chairman. He graduated with a Bachelor of
HEZHAEHEREE BEDEMIBSE  Artin Business Marketing from Indiana University, the Kelley School of
TEN HEEEHTFTIE28(Storage  Business. Previously, he held a marketing executive positicn in Storage
Technology Corp )2 MRS E AR -FEEERE  Technology Corp. He is now responsible for corporate relations, local sales
BE PEEAHEERCELERBEZSEES .  inChing and the integration of the ERP system to facilitate the modernisation
LAREAZBHETRRCER. of the Group’s management.

BlEsRAE TR BISBEAEZRF % Mr Lau Yat Sun, aged 26 is the second son of Mr. Lau Sek Hong, Philip. He
FAZEEBentley College R % S EMIZEEL  graduated at Bentley College, a business specialty college with a Bachelor
BE RE—EFBORSEFEUHER  of Artin Business Marketing. After graduation, he worked for an electronics
RZEZENENMALEAERFEZEE HE  firmin Massachusetts as a buyer for electronic components. Later on, he
EIVEENB AT 8|PEERERAFIHEER  joined the group in 2004 as Product Development President and established
EREBBEEARARERIEBE®D. koncepts International Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group. He is currently
responsible for the development of new digital products for koncepts.

BiERAiE At BRBELEEZES T Mr Lau Shek Hung, Eric, aged 50, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, is a
BER-—TEMBLRIES BEXTEARSERE  Directorof one main subsidiary of the Group. He is responsible for the Group's
HeBREEEER BEELAEESRB T+ Colour TV manufacturing business. He has been in the Group for 10 years
FEWHER T ERLEFEBEH- and has over 17 years of experience in the electronics field.

2858k E M+t BRESELEZISE  Mr. Lau Sek Hoi, Jacky, aged 47, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, is a

NEASEE—TZEMBELRES BSEM—  Dirsctor of one main subsidiary of the Group. He is holding a science degree

FIRBZEREM REEAEEREEER  from one Australian university and is currently responsible for the Group's

EHIET - REREBERE T+ —F- material sourcing, purchasing and control activities. He has been in the Group
for 21 years.

THRESE Tttm —ZTAFMAKES  Mr. Wong Kai Wai, Tony, aged 57, joined the Group as General Manager in
SREEHEAA-NANTERBARESERE 2005 He started his career in the audio and video manufacturing business
RAYUESEE DE-FEEREEEREE  since 1967. He was formarly a director of & television manufacturing company
ITHAFEE-R2EAETERGASES  listedin Hong Kong. He supervises and coordinates different divisions of the
SIS Group.

MELERE O+ b MAREB A&ETHS  Mr. Lam Wang Tat, Thomas, aged 49, joined the Group as the president of

Bz @H -FRRRENLRETITE A=+ the Group's Marketing Division. He has 29 years experience as IT veteran,

NEFER FRIRTEHREFSSREBERREE  and his background was in software, consulting system integration and

BRI RS HE T2 EM-E8E  management. He has extensive experience in sales, marketing, management,

BREMG /ZRERRETEREE LRI consulting, project management, software development and in consumer

FEREE-ZESEBEEALRES- electronic business. He was formerly a director of various major multinational
[T companies.

8 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EREEE (&) SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BrxERE A TAR RZEENFE=FA  Mr. Chow Wing Hon, Alfred, aged 55, joined the Group in March 2006 and is
FEBRSIEBES BEAEBIOEEE  responsible for the Group's corporate development and overseas operations.
MENMBATZEE-HR—Lt-=F8%  Hegraduated from the University of Hawaii in 1973 with & Bachelors's degree
REREAZ BEEETHBLZM-HME  in Business Administration. He spent most part of his working career (21
BAEEBERB - T —F EABEAREZ B years) with the Hong Kong Jockey Club, holding senior positions in Internal
BRESWERSHMA. Audit, Administration and Racing Registry.

BREREE A+AK R—ANNAFMALRE  Mr. Chan Po Chung, Norman, aged 55, joined the Group as a Financial
ERBRE EREEERERe MR Controller in 1988 for supervising the Group's accounting, financial and
GAIEER RAEEETE WHEARBBE -+ corporate aspects. He is a qualified accountant with over 21 years of auditing,
FET HERIBESH commercial and financial experience.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company firmly believes that to maintain a good, solid and
sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure the Company to run
its business in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole.

On 1 January 2005, the Code of Best Practices was replaced by the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). The Company adopted all the code
provisions in the Code as its own code on corporate governance practice.

The Company has complied during the year ended 31 March 2006 with the
Code except code provision C.2 on internal control (which will be implemented
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005) and the
following:

1. Pursuant to cade provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer of an issuer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. Having
considered the current business operation and the size of the Group,
the Board is of the view that Mr. Lau acting as both the chairman and
the Board and also as the chief executive officer of the Group is
acceptable and in the best interest of the Group. The Board will review
this situation periodically.

2. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 15 September 2005, in accordance with the
then existing bye-laws of the Company, some of the directors are not
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Company at the said annual general meeting amended its bye-laws
to provide that every director of the Company {including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject ta retirement at least
once every three years. Accordingly, at annual general meeting of
the Company in 2008, all directors will be subjected to retirement at
least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible and effective
manner. Each director has to carry out his/her duties in utmost good faith
above and beyond any prevailing applicable laws and regulations and act in
the best interests of the shareholders. The duties of the Board include
establishing the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the
Board for its decision and those reserved for the management. The Board
reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate
to the needs of the Company.

The Board of the Company consists of three executive directors, three
independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director. Their
brief biographical details are described on page 7 of the Annual Report.

The independent non-executive directors, all of whom are independent of
the management of the Company, are highly experienced professionals
coming from a diversified background. They ensure that the Board maintains
high standards of financial and other mandatory reporting as welt as providing
adequate check and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and
the Company s a whale.

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-executive director
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which
each of them is appointed for service with the Company from 1 October 2005
to 30 September 2007. The appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i)
30 September 2007, or {ii) the date on which the director ceases to be director
for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any other
applicable laws.

Except for the family relationship of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Mr. Lau Sak
Kai, Anthony and Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy as disclosed in biographical details
on page 7 there is no other relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) among the members of the Board.

The full Board meets no less than four times a year to review the financial
and operating performance of the Group. Additional board meetings were
held when necessary. Due notice and board papers were given to all directars
prior 1o the meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Code. The
Board has established procedure to enable directars, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expenses.

Annual Repart 2006 ﬂ ‘H
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

There were four regular Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31
March Z006. The attendance record of each director is shown below. Thirty
one additional Board meetings were held with the presence of executive
directors only to transact the day to day business and operation of Company.
All business transacted at the above meetings are well-documented and
maintained in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

HEESRGERE
No. of regular board

HEpg Name of director meetings attended
) Philip Lau Sak Hong 4
255K Anthony Lau Sek Kai 4
2l:m8 Andy Lau Sak Yuk 4
SR Peter Hon Sheung Tin 4
G=kz Norman Ho Hau Chong 3
BRZE Chan Chak Chung 4
BEE Winston Calptor Chuck 3
HEETESTH DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRAMSACTIONS
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‘E 2 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Campany had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
("the Model Code"), as the code of conduct regarding director's securities
transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 20086.

In addition, the Board also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for senior management of the Company in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise, there
are two Board committees namely, the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee formed under the Board, with each performing different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which is chaired by Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong, has
been established with defined terms of reference in alignment with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules.
Other members are Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Chan Chak Chung.

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice a year with the senior
management and the external auditors. The role and function of the Audit
Committee include: to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and other financial reporting matters, to assure the
completeness, accuracy and faimess of the financial statement of the Group,
discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal control throughout the
Group and most impartantly, and ta review all significant business affairs
managed by the executive directors in particular on connected transactions.
The Committee also provides advice and recommendations to the Board and
oversees all matters relating to the external auditors, and it plays an important
role in monitoring and safeguarding the independence of external auditors.

The Audit Committee met three times during the financial year ended 31
March 2006. Set out below is the summary of work done during the year:

- to review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005
and for the six months ended 30 September 2005;

- to discuss on the effectiveness of the internal control system;

- to review of the auditors” statutory audit plan and the letters of
representation; and

- to consider and approve the 2006 audit fees and audit work.

The attendance record of each member is shown below. All business
transacted at the above meetings are well-documented and maintained in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

HEEREESSE Y
No. of audit
committee

EVEEEERNSE committee member meetings attended
Rl E 44 Norman Ho Hau Chong 2
EEFEH Peter Hon Sheung Tin 3
R Chan Chak Chung
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee which is chaired by Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin,
has been established with defined terms of reference. Other members are
Mr. Chan Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck.

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract and retain
executive needed to run the Group successfully and to motivate executives
to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst taking into account
performance of the individual. The remuneration should reflect performance,
complexity and respansibility of the individual; and the remuneration package
will be structured to include salary, bonus and share options scheme to provide
incentives to directors and senior management to improve their individual
performances.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include formulation of
the remuneraticn policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual
remuneration policy, and determination of the remuneration of the executive
directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration Committee dane
during the year:

- to review the remuneration palicy for 2005/2006; and

to review the remuneration of the executive directors and the
independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets once during the financial year ended 31
March 2006 with the presence of Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Mr. Winston
Calptor Chuck.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has not established a nomination committee. According
to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board has the power from time to time
and at any time to appaint any persen as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into consideration of the nominee's qualification,
ability and potential contributions to the Company. There was no change of
the composition of the Board during financial year ended 31 March 2006.
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In respect of non-audit service, the fees paid to the Company’s auditars related
to taxation consultancy services.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders
with detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its shareholders
are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These include annual
general meeting, annual repart, various notices, announcements and circulars.
Procedure for voting by poll has been included in circular of the Company
accompanying natice convening general meeting and has been read out by
the chairman at the general mesting.

At the 2005 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-glection of
directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors and members of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee attended the 2005 annual general
meeting to answer questions to shareholders.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements. The statement of the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Report of the
Auditors on pages 25 to 26.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of corporate
governance reflects the quality of the management and the operations of
the Group's business. Good corporate governance can safeguard the proper
use of funds and effective allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’
interests. The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain, strengthen and
improve the standard and quality of the Group's corporate governance.

Annual Report 2006 ﬂ 5
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consaolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries {the “Group”} for
the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a wide range of
electronic products, securities trading and property development.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2006 are set out in the
consolidated incame statement on page 27.

An final dividend of HK3 cents per share amounting to HK$22,826.000 was
paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK3 cents per share to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 18 September
2006.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
HK$53,134,000 to expand its business. Details of the movements during the
year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 6,227,500 of its own
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kang Limited {the “Stock Exchange”).
The directors considered that, as the Company's shares were trading at a
discount to the net asset value per share, the repurchases would increase
the net asset value per share of the Company. The Company also issued
4,500,000 new shares as a result of the exercise of aptions.

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES QF THE COMPANY

In addition to accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
contributed surplus is also available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b} the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

in the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves availabie for
distribution at the balance sheet date consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$75,263,000 {2005: HK$75,263,000} and accumulated profits of
HK$46,002,000 (2005: HK$93,697,000).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this repart were:

Executive directors:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy

Non-executive director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent non-executive directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor

Inaccordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Lau Sak Yuk, Andy, Hon Sheung
Tin, Peter and Ho Hau Chong, Norman will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of two

years until 30 September 2007 and are subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company's Bys-laws.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, has provided a personal guarantee to indemnify the Group for any
impairment of an unlisted available-for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15
million (2005: HK$15 million).

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations {within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO {including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO}; or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or

TRABRALEIRBEBLRZIRMFZEZE (o) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
RREMT: Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be natified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:
FREGL
RE/%R EREE  Approximate
Long position/ 51 Number of  percentage of
Exns Name of director short position Capacity shares held  shareholding
HITES: Executive directors:
2188z Lau Sak Hong, Philip R BB A 70,284,072 9.24%
Long pasition Beneficial owner
EEHEAAZERS 3,018,090 0.40%
(KiiFa)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)
ERREARER 10,100,415 1.33%
(Bi5#b)
Interest of controlled
corparation {note b)
EHESEE (Fatc) 188,114,050 22.09%
Held by trust {note ¢
251,516,627 33.06%
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ERAGT
RE /KB BR#EB  Approximate
Long position/ &9 Number of percentage of
EEps Name of director short position Capacity shares held  shareholding
2155 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony RE ERBEEA 37,265,929 4.90%
Long pasition Beneficial owner
BRERHRAG 2 ER 3,018,090 0.40%
(fizta)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a/
BARELR R 10,100,415 1.33%
(Fiztp)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)
50,384,434 6.63%
2):58 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy RE EZEFA 35,059,108 451%
Long position Beneficial owner
BEHEAT 2 ER 3,018,090 0.40%
(Br5ta)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)
BBEEAR 2R 10,100,415 1.33%
(Ftstn)
Interest of controlled
corporation {note b)
48177613 6.34%
FHTES: Non-executive director:
A Hon Sheung Tin, Peter &E EREREA 194,645 0.03%
Long position Beneficial owner
BuFHT Independent non-executive
BEs: director:
=EE Chuck Winston Calptor EE EEEFA 770,000 0.10%

Long position

Beneficial owner

=2 a———
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(al These shares are held by K K. Nominees Limited, a company which is heneficially
owned by Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Lau Sak Kai, Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk, Andy
{hereinafter collectively with other family members referred to as the “Lau's family”).

(b) These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited, a company which
is beneficially owned by the Lau’s family.

{c) These shares are beneficially owned directly or indirectly by Philip Lau Holding
Corporation, a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include Lau Sak Hong, Philip and his associates.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominge shares in subsidiaries
held by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, as at 31 March
2006, none of the directars or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corparations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant ta section 3527 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Mode! Code in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange {the “Listing
Rules”).

SHARE QOPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme was approved and adopted at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 12 September 2002 (the “Scheme”)
for a period of b years. The primary purpose is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
Scheme included any employees, non-executive directors, suppliers of gocds
or services, customers, advisors or consultant and shareholders of any member
of the Group.

The maximum number of shares options which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the shares in issue while overall limit for all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
option granted to each participant (except substantial shareholder,
independent non-executive directar, or their respective associates) in any 12
month period up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option is any
pericd as determined by the Board, which shall not be mare than 5 years
from the date on which the option is granted. The option may be exercised
by the grantee at any time during the opticn period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the Board, but
will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
offer date; (i) the average of the clasing price of the shares of the 5 trading
day immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii} the nominal value of the
shares on the offer date.

The consideration for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be
refundable.

The movements of the options granted to certain employees of the Group
under the Scheme were as follows:

EREHE
Number of share options
R-BBHEF R-BBARF
mMA-Hz #EXEFART FFEERTE =ZA=+—8
EREHE BREHE BREHE BRES R
TEE Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
BT¥EH Exercise as at during during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2005 the year the year 31.3.2006
BT
HKS
2.5.2003 0.40 4,700,500 - 3,000,000 1,700,500
10.10.2003 0.86 15,144,000 - - 15,144,000
24.8.2004 0.808 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
2.11.2004 0.814 2,650,000 - - 2,650,000
7.2.2005 0.67 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
22.12.2005 0.80 - 4,910,000 - 4,910,000
5.1.2008 0.89 - 19,160,000 - 19,160,000
26,994,500 24,070,000 4,500,000 46,564,500

AEENREE TRFRERTERET

No share options were granted to the directors of the Company pursuant to
the Scheme during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes.

{a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of five years from the date of
grant of the options.

(b} No option was lapsed or cancelled during the year.

(c) The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates on which
the aptions were exercised was HK$0.94.

(d) The closing price per share immediately before 22 December 2005, the date on which
the options were granted, was HK$0.80.

(e) The closing price per share immediately before 5 January 2008, the date on which

the options were granted, was HK$0.89.

ARRANGEMENT Y0 PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than aption holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2006, the following person, other than the interest disclosed
above in respect of the directors, had interest in 5% or more in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company have been notified to the Company
and recorded in the register of substantial shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

HEBTRE
ZEDL
% of total

BHESEROHE
Number of
ordinary shares in

®E Name which interested issued shares
TE Lee Yu Chiang 472 140,878 5.54%

BRI RZFERE=ZA=+—H RE
(BHFERHERDD EBBKETEF2BLM
WERBREMATERRT 2B REERG
FREETAESERAR-
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Save as mentioned above and in section of “Directors’ Interests in Securities”,
as at 31 March 2006, the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO recorded no other interests or short positions in shares
of the Company.
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BE-HERESLHES PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

TEEARN BZRNEEEBRETZTBER2LE During the year, the Company repurchased its shares on the Stock Exchange
(1822 AR)) BBRA AR M B T as follows:
BEER4058 T
REE BRER

Number of shares Price per share k]
of HK$0.40 each B&E BHE Aggregate
R & Month repurchased Lowest Highest consideration
BT BT TAET
HKS HK$ HK$'000
—EEAFHA April 2005 385,000 0.67 0.68 260
ZTERFAA May 2005 417,500 0.68 0.63 284
—EEHERHA June 2005 700,000 0.68 0.70 483
ZZETRENAR August 2005 1,082,500 0.58 0.58 628
ZETRFNH September 2005 1,800,000 0.56 0.59 1,040
ZZEZAF+HA October 2005 1,642,500 0.56 0.59 944
—EFAF+—A November 2005 200,000 0.69 0.69 138
6,227,500 3,777
ZEBORMGOEEGTE MALQFBETR  The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly the issued
AZEEEERE -BER®K 2 EE@5E  share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these

HERZFTE AT -MAESHREL REFHERD
BERMSERTENERERTERHEE

BRoEEBRRE

ARBZ ARARBEFEENIELELE
BREDEMRS HRRBBF R HImE
ARRRBEHAL-

FEHEBRREF
FEBRAREEGEAZELDIEAEE
BB A EE17 34% £247.27% ©

AEESEAESHIARAEAREESR
BE D H30%e

PR EXETEEIN AR EE N E B AL
TARR (BEFHABTELARRRNOERN
5%) EAARBPRILERA E(IEE.

shares. The premium on repurchase was charged against accumulated profits.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled was
transferred from accumulated profits to the capital redemption reserve.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no pravision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 17.34% and 47.27% respectively of the
Group's total turnover for the year.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were
less than 30% of the total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers,
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based on
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors
are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
No director, or any of his associates, and executive is involved in dealing his
own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors as required under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2006.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Details of the post balance sheet event are set out in note 43 to the
consalidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

For the two vears ended 31 March 2003 and 2004, Messrs. Moores Rowland
Mazars acted as auditors of the Company while Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu acted as auditors of the Company for the two years ended 31 March
2005 and 2008.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. Delaitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 24 July 2006
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Starlight
International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) from pages 27 to 108 which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

[t is our responsihbility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on
those financial statements and to report our apinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of The Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no
other purpase. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF DPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors
in the preparation of the consclidated financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Group,
consistently applied and adeguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we cansidered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our oginion, we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
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ORINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2006 and of the profit
and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kang
24 July 2006
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For the year ygarended 31 March 2008 BRE=BEA

DNSOLIDATED INCOME S gmw&w

i

N E + Eﬂigh

2006 2005
i FET FAEIL
Notes HK$000 HK$000
(B3
{Restated)
] Turnover 7 1,820,300 1,647,423
FHEMR AR Cost of sales (1,550,672) {1,460,028)
EH Gross profit 269,628 187,395
Hmas Other income 8 26,330 32,524
DSBS Distribution costs (97,757) {59,614)
THER Administrative expenses (100,494) (95,898)
WEMEZ AFEEEN Increase in fair value of investment properties 15 2,691 7,290
EEEE%TE%@EIELZ@%U Realised gain on derivative financial
instruments 1,411 983
eI EZAFEE Decrease in fair value of derivative financial
Dot instruments (16) -
EEEZREESFZLF Increase in fair valug of investments held
EREREI for trading 952 -
WEBEFRERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
investment securities - {1,047}
HipRE 2 R EHEIE Unrealised holding loss on other investments - (5,073
HEESMB A RES Amortisation of goodwill arising on
2R acquisition of subsidiaries - {2,688)
B%ER Finance costs g (11,975) (6,726)
(R 2 N E] B8 Share of losses of associates (79) (378)
BR 7R AR A Profit before taxation 10 90,691 56,768
g Taxation 12 {11,452) (5,694)
TEE BN FRE Profit for the year 79,239 51,074
THIA TR Attributable to:
RRARRE Sharenholders of the Company 719,141 50,526
DB R Minority interests 98 548
79,239 51,074
A Dividends paid 13 37,970 42,033
Bl A
HK cents HK cents
(&%)
{Restated)
BiraH Earnings per share 14
-E=R — Basic 10.4 5.6
—BE — Diluted

10.3 6.6
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At31 March 2006 RZBBARF=ZA=+—8H

ESHEET - -

2006 2005
HieE FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(5
(Restated)
FERBEE Non-current assets
REME Investment praperties 15 76,500 61,100
YrEE HERE I R Property, plant and equipment 16 294,734 292,658
EAHE Prepaid lease payments 17 4,257 4,378
ELEERS Product development costs 18 1,300 1,646
G Goodwill 19 9,149 9,149
FE(RERE A TR Interest in associates 22 1,701 1,780
AHEEYSHEE Available-for-sale investments 23 24,099 -
BHIRE Investments in securities 24 - 24,134
BLERIBEE Deferred tax assets 34 1,929 42
WETFARZE S Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries 38 15,537 -
429,206 394,887
MBEE Current assets
BE Inventories 26 376,034 303,770
HEME Properties for sale 27 1,453 1,453
FEIRERIE & KRR IR Debtors, deposits and prepayments 28 293,323 178,738
TEfT (B Prepaid lease payments 17 121 121
JE R & N RIBRIE Amounts due from associates 29 2,940 2,919
AT E R FR Taxation recoverable 2,089 2,665
AHHEZIRE Available-for-sale investments 23 150 -
BEEECRE investments held for trading 30 27,767 -
BERE Investments in securities 24 - 33,737
PTHEE@T A Derivative financial instruments 25 4,659 -
RITHEERERS Bank balances and cash 31 81,745 57,551
790,281 580,954
REAE Current liabilities
FENERIERETER Creditors and accrued charges 32 252,391 176,290
FETEEE N FIRIR Amount due to an associate 29 2,809 2,809
TTEsBmTIA Derivative financial instruments 25 454 -
P FRIE Taxation payable 4,478 546
—FRIBPZER Borrowings — amount due within one year 33 220,792 108,602
RITEX Bank overdrafts 2,311 1,551
483,235 289,798
RBEEEE Net current assets 307,046 291,156
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2006 2005
fisE FET FHET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
(E7)
(Restated)
BEERTHAMR Total assets less current liabilities 736,252 686,043
EREAE Non-current liabilities
BEERIESE Deferred tax liabilities 34 7,558 2,676
BERE Net assets 728,694 £83,367
ERREE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 35 304,352 305,043
5 Reserves 422,825 376,771
AR R B AR Equity attributable to shareholders
mER of the Company 121117 681,814
LEHREELS Minarity interests 1,517 1,553
BrEs Total equity 728,694 683,367

FE-+HBEE-Z\BME2THHRSEE & Thefinancial statements on pages 27 to 108 were approved and authorised
RIEERFLA-+NEHESEHERIE  forissue by the Board of Directors on 24 July 2006 and are signed on its

BT THhTHIESRREE: behalf by:
BlEE
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
FEFREFALIE

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

845

Lau Sak Kai, Anthony

EE
DIRECTOR
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 B#E ¥R RE=ZA=Z+-BEEF

FCHANGES IN EQUITY

LYk
Righx BERG
BE  EGRE BEE  RARE Atrbuteble
Ep Other B MERR o 48
Bz BAEE ABHE  AFE BR Ivestment  propery  BEHE Share  Cepitdl ESURA chareholders  BEEE
Sharg Share Memer ~ Negative  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Translation option  redemption  Accumulated ofthe  Minority i
capital  premium  reseve  goodwill  reseve  ceserve  reserve  reseve reseve  resenve profits ~ Company  interests Total
TRL AT TEn TET TET TET TEr TEL TEn AR TEr A TEn TER

HEB0 RKSWD HKSOID AKSOAD AKSDD ANSDOD  ACSODD KSTAD AKSOOR  MKSBO0 RKSWD HKSUMD AKSTDD AT

RZZTEERF-B AT Apri 2004
FHER - a3 originally stated 302888 83782 ;A% 1AM (3688 - 1,682 5818 - 45385 182792 668,968 1365 670,333
~effects of changes in
accounting policies )
fnotes 2and 3} - - - - - - - - - - 188 1,288) - {1,288
-E3 - a5 restated 302688 83782 3B AT (3688) - 1,682 5818 - 46985 181504 667680 1365 B69,045
LRZE Exchange ifference
FrECEY asing on translation
£ of foreiga operations
id:3s and income directly
remgmsed in equity - - - - - - - 438 - - - 438 1360) 3948
FEREH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - N8B 5058 b P
FEEERAMA  Totel recognised income
bt and expanse for the year - - - - - - - 438 - - 506 5483 B 50
W G WB NS BEs - 1 0 S BSSR00 TS 159 T
RGEBHEERES  Issua of shares epon
2B exercise of share options 2982 - - - - - - - - - -2 -
EERR R Premium on reputchase
of shares - - - - - - - - - - 822} 1822) - 822}
2R Repurchase of shares {827} - - - - - - - - - - 1827) - 822}
ERRNEEZ Capital redempion
REREEE resenve arisiag from
repurchase of shares - - - - - - - - - 827 827) - - -
Bhifs Dividends paid - - - - - - - - - - {4033 42033 - {A2033)
i\\_ff:lz £t31 March 2005
ZEI-B WM WA WAB U5 (6 S 0% S KRR X - TIR T O c
FEE PO Opening balznce
HELIED adjustments rising fiom
BE (BEoR)) adoption of new aocounting
policies fnotes 2 and 3) - - - (15 - - - - - -1 - - -
Ro§ERE At 1 Apri 2005,
mA-8&3 35 restated 05043 83782 3113 - (3688 - 1662 10,126 - 47812 19319 6818 1553 683367
SABZZURLE  Davease in fair value of
RELTERD avallable-for-sale .
investmenis - - - - - (3% - - - - - - {35) - 35)
Increase in far value of
feasehold proparties
ransferred i investment
praperiies fnote 16 - - - - - - 35 - - - - 5 - 3%
Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - - 2082 - - - 2082 (134) 1948

30 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




f\% %ﬁ%@%

Forthe yearended 31 March 2008 #Z—2F~FZH=+— Eiitﬁ)‘”’

LI
-4k RREL
EfRE BEE  RERE Aeributable
Other HE HEHE o 2]
B RBER SHHE B8 popery  RERE Share  Copitel  EERH shaetoldes  BREE
Share Share Merger Goodwill revaluation  Tranglation option  redemption Accumulated ofthe  Minority b
capital  premivm reserve reserve reserve TBserve reserve reserve profits ~ Company  interests Total
TR TET TER FET TET TR TR TEr  TEnr Thn  FEr  TEx
WSO KOO0 AKSOD HKS000 HESO00  KSUOD  AKSOOD  HKSOBD  HKSOOD HESTOO  HESOOD  AKSTOO
Net income and expenses
recognised directly
in eguity - - - - 35 2,082 - - - {134) 2238
Profit for ihe year - - - - - - - -8 %8 7923
Total recognised income
and expense for the year - - - - 375 108 - L A A KK ) 8141
0083 838 3 (3.688) 2000 12,208 - a8 MmN 7833 1517 764844
R Recagnition of equity
settled shar based
payments - - - - - -39 - - 339 -39
Issug of shares upon
exercise of share options 1800 405 - - - - - - - 2,208 - 25
Premium on repurchase
of shares - - - - - - - - (1288 (1,280) - (178)
Repurchase of shares {2491 - - - - - - - -4 - )
Capi-al redemption
reserve arising from
repurchase of shares - - - - - - - 24 - - -
Divicends paid - - - - - - - -3 B - {3790)
At 31 March 2006
432 BAI8T 3738 {3,688} 2000 12208 33 5033 Wy awm 1517 72869
At 31 March 2005
Attributable to:
- the Company and
subsidiaries 5043 83782 AN {3,668) 1682 10315 - 4817 154 586179 1553 687,732
- associates - - - - - {189) - - (a1 {4369 - {4368
0083 83 N 3,688 1882 101% - 4812 18838 681814 1553 683,367
At 31 March 2008
Attributable to:
- the Company and
subsidiaries 043 84e 31138 (3,68) 2000 12397 33 50303 241568 736N 157 733138
- assoriates - - - - - {189) - - a2 (444 - [
04382 848 37138 (3,688) 2000 1228 33% 8038 a3 nunawm 1517 72869
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT -~ - e Bas

For the year ended 31 March 2006 BZE=—RFXF=/A=+—BLtFE
2006 2005
FET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(B3]
{Restated)
REELVES Cash flows from operating activities
BT AT S 7Y Profit before taxation 90,691 56,768
HE Adjustments for:
[EIEEE R REE Share of losses of associates 79 378
ERRAEKTEH Amortisation of product development costs 346 86
BAEEFIEER Release of prepaid lease payments 121 121
MR BERERNE Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant
and equipment 45,383 46,895
WENEBARMEREEE Amortisation of goodwill arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries - 2,688
REYE R TFEL Increase in fair value of investment properties {2,691) {7,290)
HIEBBEREZ BB S Dividend income from investments held for trading (448) -
EfigE 2 R ds - Dividend income from other investments ~ listed
ETRF - (394)
EERHELRS Brokerage expenses on redemption of shares 30 8
BALEZRAHAR Share-based payments 3,392 -
ROAREMBRANE Interest on bank and other barrowings 11,975 8,723
MEENARZ TS Interest on obligations undsr a hire purchase contract - 3
FE WA Interest income {534) [292)
PTEERIERAFERD Decrease in fair value of derivative financial instruments 16 -
BIEEE 2 AN Increase in fair value of investments held for trading {952) -
EMIREAREREBR Unrealised holding loss on ather investments - 5,073
RABHFOHIAESRE Impairment loss recognised in respect of investment
securities - 1,047
HEME BBRRER2EBE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1133 105
REBE Allowance for doubtful debts - 1,900
RERBE FERETH Net allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories 499 1,367
HERERQERT Gain on disposal of an associate - [142)
SELFARREREY Effect of foreign exchange rate change on
inter-company balances 1,942 4,010
BEATEB EEES Operating cash flows before movement in working capital
BERA 150,982 119,054
FEEM Increase in inventorigs (72,763) {1,430
BEMERL Decrease in properties for sale - 4705
RN RERENRE {Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments
(&) B (114,585) 57,866
fiEeRT A Increase in derivative financial instruments (4,739) -
BIEEERE B0 E Decrease (increase} in investments held for trading/other
b (B ) investments 6,772 (7,949)
FE B & 13 B BRIBHE AN Increase in amount due to an associate - 9
ERERREABAEMN (RL)  Increase (decrease) in creditors and accrued charges 76,619 (57,810)
ERFT&Em e Increase (decrease) in customers’ daposits - {908)
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8 ;_;___ CONSOLIDATED-CASH FLOW: §TMEMENT T

BLEeRER - :/

For the year ended 31 March 2006 &2 —ZFE<E=A=+—8 J.ti’?

2006 2005
FET FHET
HKS$ 000 HK$000
(E51)
{Restated)
BEEEZERE Cash generated from operations 42,286 113,537
EBFEHER Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 1,958 -
BFEFEHE Hang Kong Profits Tax paid (2,263) (2,918)
AR HIES Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (3,644) (3.447)
BEEBREIRETE Net cash from operating activities 38,337 107,172
REXBRER Cash flows from investing activities
BEDE - BBERERTOR Purchase of property, plant and equipment {63,134) (58,042}
SANEE=nl = NI Payment of deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries (15,537) -
BEXRTFHE LT Advances to associates (21) (119)
HENE HERESEZIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,164 32
Sk Interest receivad 534 292
RIEEEREZREBA Dividerd income from investments held for trading 448 -
HiiRE 7 RaBA Dividend income from other investments - 394
ELRERAEN . Praduct development costs paid - (1,732)
REEBRAZASES Net cash used in investing activities (75,546) {59,175)
BEXEBRSR Cash flows from financing activities
BEEERE Dividends paid {32,970) (42,033)
ENERITRE tﬁ A B Interest on bank and other borrowings paid {11,975) (6,723)
BEREBREEF (R RAZ Net cash {outflow} inflow from debt factoring loans
FeFE (7,242) 1,469
EOROBERSERE Repurchases of shares including brokerage expensss (3,807) (1,657)
ERRERADEFRSZ Net cash inflow {outflow) from trust receipts and import
o ORACRS) loans and loans related to bills discounted with recourse 111,687 {15,842}
RHRERTAZE S8 Net cash inflow from short term loans 7,745 9,171
HITHEBRENETRGZ Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of
FTB R share options 2,205 2,982
BEEBEH AR Repayment of obligations under a hire purchase contract - (62
ABE K RENE Interest on abligations under a hire purchase contract paid - (3)
MEEFERSE (R 2 Net cash from {used in) financing activities
Re 58 60,643 {52,698]
HeRIBESEZEMKP)  Netincrease {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23,434 (4,701)
FEYRERBESEESE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 56,000 60,701
ERFRERREFERE Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 79,434 56,000
K& Represented by:
RITEHRES Rank balances and cash 81,745 57 551
RITERX Bank overdrafts {2,311) (1,551}

79,434 56,000
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NOTES T2 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 BE RS NEZA=-+—RALEE
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GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dallars which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a
wide range of electronic products, securities trading and property
development.

APPLICATION OF MEW/REVISED HONG KCNG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number
of new or revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
{"HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations {“INTs") (hereinafter callectively referred to as the
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new
HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation of the
consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet and
consalidated statement of changes in equity. In particular, the
presentation of minarity interests has been changed as required by
HKAS 1 "Presentation of financial statements”. The changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively. The adoption of the
new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the Group's accounting
palicies in the following areas that have an effect on how the results
for the current and/or prior accounting years are prepared and
presented.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Business combinations

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 3 "Business
combinations” {“HKFRS 3") which is effective for business
combinations for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January
2005. The principal effects of the application of HKFRS 3 to the Group
are summarised below:

Goodwill

In previous years, goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 Aprit 2001
was held in reserves, and goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 April
2001 was capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life.

From 1 April 2005 onwards, goodwill previously recognised in reserves
continues to be held in reserves and will be transferred to accumulated
profits of the Group at the time when the business to which the
goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired. With respect to
goodwill previously capitalised on the balance sheet, the Group has
discontinued amortising such goodwill fram 1 April 2005 onwards
and goodwill will be tested for impairment at least annually and in
the financial year in which the acquisition takes place. Goodwill
arising on acquisition after 1 January 2005 is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (if any) after initial recognition. With
respect to goodwill previously capitalised on the balance sheet, the
Group eliminated the carrying amount of the related accumulated
amortisation of HK$7,426,000 with a corresponding decrease in the
cost of goodwill on 1 April 2005 (see note 19). As a result of this
change in accounting policy, no amartisation of goodwill has been
charged in the current year. Comparative figures for the year ended
31 March 2005 have not been restated (see note 3 for the financial
impact).
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HCONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS {Continued)

Business combinations [Continved)

Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of acquireg’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
{previously known as “negative goodwill”)

In accordance with HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group's interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition (“discount on
acquisition”} is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the acquisition takes place. In previous vears, negative
goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2001 was held in
reserves, and negative goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 April
2001 was presented as a deduction from assets and released to
income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the
balance resulted. The Group has applied the relevant transitional
pravisions in HKFRS 3. Negative goodwill previously recognised in
reserves of HK$11,571,000 has been transferred to the Group’s
accumulated profits on 1 April 2005 (see note 3 for the financial
impact).

Share-based payments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” {"HKFRS 2") which requires an expense to be recognised
where the Group buys goods or obtains services in exchange for shares
or rights over shares {“equity-settled transactions”), or in exchange
for other assets equivalent in value to a given number of shares or
rights over shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact
of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair
value of share options granted to directors and employses of the
Company, determined at the date of grant of the share options, over
the vesting period. Priar to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did
not recognise the financial effect of these share aptions until they
were exercised. The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options
granted on or after 1 April 2005. In relation to share options granted
before 1 April 2005, the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2 with
respect to share options granted on or before 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 April 2005. Comparative figures have not been
restated. The financial impact of HKFRS 2 on current year results is
disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: disclosure and presentation” ("HKAS 32") and HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: recognition and measurement” ("HKAS 39”).
HKAS 32 requires retrospective application. The application of HKAS
32 has had no material impact on how the financial instruments of
the Group are presented for current and prior accounting years. HKAS
39, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2005, generally does not permit the recognition,
derecognition or measurement of financial assets and liabilities on a
retrospective basis. The principal effects resulting from the
implementation of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 are summarised below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS
39 with respect to classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

By 31 March 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt and
equity securities in accordance with the benchmark treatment of the
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice {“SSAP”) 24 "Accounting
for investments in securities” ("SSAP 24"). Under SSAP 24,
investments in debt or equity securities are classified as “investment
securities” or “other investments” as appropriate. “Investment
securities” are carried at cost less impairment losses (if any} while
“other investments” are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses included in the profit or loss. From 1 April 2005 onwards,
the Group has classified and measured its debt and equity securities
in accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are
classified as "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”,
“available-for-sale financial assets” or “loans and receivables”.
“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” and "available-
for-sale financial assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in
fair values recognised in profit or loss and equity respectively.
Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have quoted market
prices in an active market and whose fair valug cannat be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unguoted eguity instruments are measured at cost
less impairment after initial recogniticn. “Loans and receivables” are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method after
initial recognition.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

On 1 April 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt and equity
securities in accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 39,
As a result of the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group has redesignated
“investments in securities” recorded in the consolidated balance sheet
at 1 April 2005 amounting to HK$24,284,000 as “available-for-sale
investments” and HK$33,587,000 as investments held for trading.
During the year ended 31 March 20086, the decrease in fair value of
available-for-sale investments of HK$35,000 is charged to investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured
its financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities (which were previously outside the scope of SSAP 24) in
accordance with the requirements of HKAS 39. As mentioned above,
financial assets under HKAS 39 are classified as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”, "available-for-sale financial assets”,
or “loans and receivables”. Financial liabilities are generally classified
as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” or “other
financial liabilities”. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or lass are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in profit or loss directly. “Other financial liabilities” are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method after
initial recognition. These requirements of HKAS 39 did not have any
financial impact to the Graup.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging

From 1 April 2005 onwards, all derivatives that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 are required to be carried at fair value at each balance
sheet date regardless of whether they are deemed as held for trading
or designated as effective hedging instruments. Under HKAS 39,
derivatives {including embedded derivatives separately accounted for
from the non-derivative host contracts) are deemed as held-for-trading
financial assets or financial liabilities, unless they qualify and are
designated as effective hedging instruments. The corresponding
adjustments on changes in fair values would depend on whether the
derivatives are designated &s effective hedging instruments, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. For derivatives that are
deemed as held for trading, changes in fair values of such derivatives
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. The
derivatives of the Group are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets or financial liabilities. In prior years, the derivatives were
recorded in creditors and accrued charges. On 1 April 2005, the
derivative financia! instruments were reclassified from creditors and
accrued charges accordingly (see note 3).

Derecognition

HKAS 39 provides mare rigorous criteria for the derecognition of
financial assets than the criteria applied in previous periods. Under
HKAS 39, a financial asset is derecognised, when and only when,
either the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire, or the
asset is transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The decision as to whether a transfer
qualifies for derecognition is made by applying a combination of risks
and rewards and control tests. The Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions and applied the revised accounting policy
prospectively to transfers of financial assets from 1 April 2005
onwards. As a result, the Group's bill receivables discounted with
full recourse which were derecognised prior to 1 April 2005 have not
been restated. As at 31 March 2008, the Group's bill receivables
discounted with full recourse have not been derecognised. Instead,
the related borrowings of HK$66,065,000 have been recognised on
the balance sheet date. The relevant finance costs incurred in order
to abtain such borrowings are included in the carrying amount of the
borrowings on initial recognition and amortised over the terms of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Previously, the
difference between the carrying amount of the hill receivables and
proceeds received was expensed immediately when incurred. This
change in accounting policy has had no material effect on results for
the current year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HOMG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings were
included in property, plant and equipment and measured using the
cost model. In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 17
“Leases” ("HKAS 17”). Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings
elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately
for the purposes of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the fand and buildings elements,
inwhich case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease.
To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments between the
fand and buildings elements can be made relizbly, the leasehold
interests in land are reclassified to prepaid lease payments under
operating leases, which are carried at cost and amortised over the
lease term on a straight line basis. This change in accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively (see note 3 for the financial impact).
Alternatively, where the allocation between the land and buildings
elements cannot be made reliably, the leasehald interests in land
continue to be accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time, applied HKAS 40
“Investment property” ("HKAS 40"). The Group has elected to uss
the fair value model to account far its investment properties which
requires gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties to be recognised directly in the profit or loss
for the year in which they arise. In previous years, investmant
properties under the predecessor SSAP were measured at open
market values, with revaluation surplus or deficit credited or charged
to investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this
reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which
case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve was charged to the income
statement. Where a decrease had previously been charged to the
income statement and a revaluation surplus subsequently arose, that
increase was credited to the income statement to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. The Group has applied the relevant
transitional provisions in HKAS 40 and elected to apply HKAS 40
retrospectively. Comparative figures for 2005 have not been restated
since the gain on change in fair value has been credited to the income
statement already.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Deferred taxes related to investment properties

In previous years, deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued
investment properties were assessed on the basis of the tax
consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying amount
of the properties through sale in accordance with the predecessor
Interpretation. In the current year, the Group has applied Hong Kong
Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretation 21 “Income taxes
— recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets” {“HK(SIC) INT 21”)
which removes the presumption that the carrying amount of
investment properties is to be recovered through sale. Therefore, the
deferred tax consequences of the investment properties are now
assessed on the basis that reflects the tax conseguences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects to recover the
property at each balance sheet date. In the absence of any specific
transitional provisions in HK(SIC) INT 21, this change in accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively. Comparative figures for 2005
have been restated (see nate 3 for the financial impact).

The Group has not early applied the following new standards and
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of thess
standards or interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1{Amendment)  Capital disclosures'

HKAS 13 {Amendment)  Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and
disclosuras?

HKAS 21 (Amendment)  Net investment in a fareign operation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions?

HKAS 39 {Amendment]  The fair value option?

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 Financial guarantee contracts?
(Amendments)
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources?
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures'
HKFRS - INT4 Determining whather an arrangement contains a

lease?

i
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2 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HONG KONG FINANGIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Deferred taxes related to investment properties (Continued)

HKFRS-INT 5

HK{IFRIC)-INT

HK{IFRIC)-INT 7

HK(IFRICIINT 8

HK(IFRICHINT 3

Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds?

Liabilities arising from participating in a specific
market — waste electrical and electronic
equipment®

Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
“"Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies™

Scope of HKFRS 2°

Reassessment of embedded derivatives?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006.
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3. S REEHCHAME 3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 1N
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BITHEEHHE A RBEERESE The effects of the changes in the accounting policies described above
.% ?”?EEQDT< on the results for the current and prior years are as follows:
2006 2005
FET FET
HKS 000 HK$000
BEEEA Decrease in amortisation of goodwill 2,688 -
ERER IR GEh0) Decrease (increase) in deferred taxation 1,258 (22)
AR 10 (TR A0 Increase in share-based payments {3,392) -
PTEERMIEZRTE Decrease in fair value of derivative financial
P instruments (16) -
DH\% $2 A HEERE Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
DEERD investments charged to equity 35 -
FEEHERIEM G Increase (decrease) in profit for the year 573 (22)
BEENEMZNSBEERETFE A An analysis of the increase (decrease) in profit for the year by line
R0 G A st items presented according to their function is as follows:
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
EEM R Decrease in amortisation of goodwill 2,688 -
IR (BE ) Decrease {increase) in taxation 1,258 (22)
TR I Increase in administrative expenses (3,392) -
PTHEeMIAEZNFE Decrease in fair value of derivative financial
A instruments {16) -
ETAMERE AR ERE Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
DEERD investments charged to equity 35 -
573 (22)

Annual Report 2006 43



[2)

NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBBRENE |
For the year ended 31 March 2006 B2 RS F=A=+—81LFE -
S RESBHIHENE (F) 3. SUMMARY QF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES 1N
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ENA—AERFI B EREER
2RI EENT:

ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The cumulative effects of the application of the new HKFRSs as at
31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005 are summarised below:

£
R BERE B
ZEBnE BE % ZBE- -—BE1f% EE  BEUH R
=R BIER  eiEd BEENG Zh  EiER HEXA —EEIF
=t+-H g1¥ 28 & =+1-9 g30% g% ME-H
At 8  2ZE2  Efectof M 28 2% At
3 March  Effectof  Effectof  HKISIC) 31March  Effectof Effectof  1Apiil
2005  HKAS1 HKAS1? INT-21 2005 HKAS39  HKFRS3 2005
FEr  FET AT  TAT  TBx  TAT  FEr  TEx
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0O  HKS'000
(W&
3R
(Originally (&3] (E3)
stated) {Restated) {Restated)
EEEREEET  Balance sheet items
ge: affected:
WE-BER  Property, plant and
xE equipment 297,157 - (4,499) - 292658 - - 792558
EREERE  Prepaid lease payments - - 4499 - 4,498 - - 4,499
EEREEE  Deferred tax assets - - - - 47 L) - - 42
EELE Investments in securities 57,871 - - - 57871 (57871 - -
e Available-for-sale
1 investments - - - - - 24,284 - 24,284
BIEEE Investments held for
HA trading - - - - - 33,587 - 33,587
BREZRR Creditors and accrued
R charges 176,290} - - - (176,290} 518 - (175772
ey Derivative financial
I8 instruments - - - - - {518} - {518
EEHERE  Deferred tax liabilities (1,324] - - (1,352} (2,878 - - {2,6781
HHEERSAE  Other assets and liabilities 507 263 - - - 507,63 - - 507,263
HEEREE  Total effects on assets
J¥8Es and liabilities 684,677 - - (1,310) 683,367 - - 683,367
BERER Share capital and other
e TESEves 481895 - - - 481895 - - 481,895
EEE Negative goodwill 1157 - - - 11,571 - (15 -
EHphi) Accumulated profits 189,658 - - (13101 188,348 - 1571 199919
DERFERE  Minority interests - 1583 - - 1553 - - 1553
HEZ27FE  Total effectson
et equity 683124 1,583 - {1310) 683367 - - 683367
LEREES  Minority interests 1,553 (1,593} - - - - - -
684,677 - - 1.310) 683,367 - - 563,367

@ﬁé’ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




[M]TE§ T@ THE CONSOLIDATED B TNAN@DA& STAT EMEU\”T§ ,,,,,,
%HM%%%WE

For the year ended 31 March 2006 REZRF <

mzAzi-guEE

BB HERE (&

FERFEEEMBREENEN_2E
WENA—BZTEEER Y B E
BRatan T

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN
AGCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The financial effects of the application of the new HKFRSs to the
Group's equity at 1 April 2004 are summarised below:

BEEERRE
ERET ZEBE-RE
ZRAEIF FnNHEzwE
BERFR e Effect of E7)
As originally Effect of HK(SIC) As
stated HKAS 1 INT-21 restated
FBIL FAET FExT FAET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R R EAM Share capital and other
HE reserves 488,176 - - 486,176
RETEF Accumulated profits 182,792 - {1,288} 181,504
CEBRREER Minority interests - 1,365 - 1,365
R g8 Total effects on
488 equity 668,968 1,365 {1,288) 669,045
LERREER Minority interests 1,365 (1,365) - -
670,333 - (1,288) 669,045

FTEEIRE
BRETHELRERTARELESEIR
FEFE (FELATXAREETEE)
S R B BTEHRE AR SR ERE

HEMBRENIRETEETMAER
M2 ERBMBRELRRE WM A
VEBRSRREBIMES LMREIRE
AREHEPIREZEREE-

HEREEE
FEVBREERAARKENBAT
ZHBHRE-FERARTEZ RS
REHRENGEERERYIHE.

WA AR 2 B A T
ETS A B R R E M E A
BELE (RERBRTE) i ASAK
EE S

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. All inter-company
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.
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@’@ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets af consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
gquity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess af the minority's interest in the subsidiary's equity
are aliocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding abligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acguisition priar to 1 April 2001 continues to be
held in reserves, and will be charged to the income statement at the
time when the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of
or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 April
2007, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 April 2005
onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cesh generating unit to which
the goadwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy
below).

Goedwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005

Goadwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill {Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005 (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goadwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recaognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of an
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost (“discount on acquisition”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which an agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents
the excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
lighilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the business
combination. Discount on acquisition is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

As explained in note 3 abave, negative goadwill recognised in reserve

1 April 2005 has been derecognised with a corresponding
adjustment to the Group’s accumulated profits.

Annual Report 2006 4’7
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@’8 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only 10 the extent that the Group has incurred legal or canstructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant associate.

Interest in jointly controlled operations

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled operations,
the assets and liabilities arising from those jointly controlled
operations are recognised in the balance sheet of the relevant
company on an accrual basis and classified according to the nature
of the item. The Group’s share of the income from jointly controlled
aperations, together with the expenses that it incurs are included in
the income statement when it is probable that the economic benefits
assaciated with the transactians will flow to/from the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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Revenue recognition {Continued)
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
right to receive payment has been established.

Commission income is recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties
under operating leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over
the relevant lease terms.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ardinary course of business is
recognised when all of the following criteria are met:

. the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transfarred to buyers;

. neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the properties are retained;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” {"HKAS
16") from the requirement to make regular revaluation of the Group's
land and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts prior
to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land
and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1395, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these assets was
credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value of
these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they
exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus
is transferred to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes all development expenditure and other direct
costs attributable to such project. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until completion of construction. On completion of
construction, the assets are transferred to appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance methad.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as assets owned by the
Group.

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot De allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future ecanomic benefits are expected to arise
fram the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the
net disposal procseds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment groperty is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement in the year in which the
item is derecagnised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or seles of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
subsequent ta initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including debtars, bank balances and amounts due
from associates) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the ariginal effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods whan an
increase in the asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories (set out
above). At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previausly recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
reverse to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment 10ss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POQLICIES (Continusd)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financia! liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group’s financial liabilities generally include other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amount due to an associate
and borrowings are subsequently mezasured at amortised cast, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
praceeds recelved, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Berivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading.
Changes in fair values of such derivatives are recognised directly in
income statement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group's
consolidated balance sheet {i.e. when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recagnised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Company

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will transferred to accumulated profits.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset is recognised only if all of
the following conditions are met:

- an asset is created that can be identified:;

- it is probable that the asset credited will generate future
gconomic benefits; and

- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises of the cost of the land together with direct
costs attributable to the completion of the properties. Net realisable
value is calculated at the actual or estimated sefling price less related
costs of marketing and selling.

Inventories

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted-average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all further costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (Continued)
Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. [f the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at & revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation
[ncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consclidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temparary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liahilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 B2 —SFAE=ZA=+—3 +FE
4, EEGHEE (8 4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Bk (&) Taxation (Continued)
BERBEEECREENESLEEDR The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at sach
i BRERTAT B R UEEFTA balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
o EERETHRER. probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow al! or

part of the asset to be recoversd.

RERBREREANEREERER Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
BEEBRRE 2 HEFE-RERBEANEN in the period when the liability is settied or the asset is realised.
AR ESREEERENREA Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
RRIEE CBEMIERIN sZERIBIR relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
TERRERTE - the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
B/ Leases
REBEMEEZEAR SRR KER Leases are classified as finance lsases whenever the terms of the
BYAMBAZEL H5 AREEL AT lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
BEMBESFEELEN- the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating Jeases.
KEEERBHEA The Group as lessor
BERNBS KRR ASSERERER Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
SRR - EEREHERENM income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
BEEVSEERAGHTAEELESR lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
B AESERRESH operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term.
KEEEBFEA The Group as lessee
RERERNIFE 2 BERTIHEL Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
EEZATER (MBERE) REHE Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
NEGRERRAEE-RBAMESE the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
AR EEABRIEREELE liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as
BE-HEFEL S ANBERARELE a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
B SR BSERREE L E-GB finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
EEEEMBER a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to profit or |oss.

MERNETENESUESEERE Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
FEEBNEES -EA e nE on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
Bz BB RERRERE received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
EERLSESHIHBIEE - lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lsase

term on a straight line basis.
BEHE Borrowing costs

FIEEENTREFBEERAHSE- All borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-
translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which casg, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme or the
Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") Scheme are charged as expenses
as they fall due.
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KEY SQURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 4, management has made various estimates based
on past experience, expectations of the future and other information.
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance shest date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's net book value of property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2006 was approximately HK$294,734,000. The Group
depreciates the property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, using the reducing balance
methad, at 10% to 30% per annum. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits fram the use of the Group's property, plant
and equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the
asset, after deducting the estimated cost of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of
its useful life.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
maving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods and consumables based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2008, the
carrying amount of goodwill is approximately HK$9,148,000. Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNGERTAINTY (Continued)
Income taxes

As at 31 March 2006, no deferred tax asset was recognised in the
Group’s balance sheet in relation to the estimated unused tax losses
of HK$179,876,000 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, a material recognition or
reversal of deferred tax asset may arise, which would be recognised
in the income statement for the period in which such a recognition
takes place.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors and deposits,
amounts due from/to associates, bank balances and cash, creditors
and barrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have sales and trade receivables
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitars foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-
rate hank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any policy
on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the management
manitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 March
2006 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individua! trade
debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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7. PEER 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) HXIE {a)  Business segments
AEBEBH=ZEIFEX 5 The Group is organised into three operating divisions, namely
REEFERR %L&iﬁ design, manufacture and sale of electronic products,

S EREERMEER-TE
B0 BEREEREZED
B2 E R

(i) BAREERHIEZE (i)

securities trading and property development. These divisions
are the basis an which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by

EEREESTOT: business segments is as follows:
EFERM
BERHE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of E5EE VERE
electronic  Securities Praperty &it
products trading development Consolidated
FEL FET FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-BTAE=R Year ended
ZT-AiLtFE 31 March 2006
228 TURNOVER 1,782,771 31529 - 1820300
SRES SEGMENT RESULTS 99,016 2,820 (2,316) 99,520
LEON Interest income 534
BEAMELTEEN Increase in fair value of
investment properties 2,691
BARK Finance costs {11,975)
EERENAEE Share of losses of associates (79)
PRARETA A Profit before taxation 90,691
Giob] Taxation {11,452)
AEERT Profit for the year 19,239
HingH OTHER INFORMATION
BENZ KR Additions of property, plant
RE and equipment 63,134 - - 63,134
EmARNTEE Amortisation of product
development costs 346 - - 346
ENEENERE Release of prepaid lease payments 121 - - 121
mE -BEREE Depreciation and amortisation
WERES of property, plant and equipment 45,3713 - 10 45,383
HEVE BER Loss on disposal of property,
REZER plant and equipment 1,133 - - 1133
BERREIFE Net allowance for obsolete and
BEEE slow-moving inventories 499 - - 499
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
¥BaE (B (a)  Business segments (Continued)
i (%) (i) {Continued)
BYERFT
BERHEE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of EHFEE NEER
glectronic Securities Proparty =H
products trading  development  Consolidated
FET FEIL FEL FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
BE_TTHE=A Year ended
=+-BIEE 31 March 2005
EXE TURNOVER 1,625,496 16,682 5245 1,647,423
agE SEGMENT RESULTS 55,688 1,054 {452) 56,290
HEHA Interest income 292
RENELTEEN Increase in fair value of
investment properties 7,290
BERSE Finance costs 6,726)
EiEmERTER Share of losses of associates (378)
bRt Al 7 Profit before taxation 56,768
HE Taxation (5,694)
RERHET Profit for the year 51,074
HtER OTHER INFORMATION
EENE BR Additions of property, plant
P& and squipment 58,042 - - 58,042
AEERE Allowance for doubtful debts 1,900 - - 1,900
WEHBARM Amortisation of goodwill arising
EEBBEHE an acquisition of subsidiaries 2,688 - - 2688
ERRERAZEH Amortisation of product
development costs 86 - - 86
BREERERE Release of prepaid lease payments 121 - - 121
nE-BERRE Depreciation and amortisation of
nERES property, plant and equipment 46,880 - 15 46,895
RBERTERRY Impairment loss recognised in
REBE respect of investment securities 1047 - - 1,047
BERRHECFE Net allowance for obsolete
BEEE and slow-moving inventories 1367 - - 1367
EmAEKAETER  Product development cost
capitalised 1,732 - - 1,732
HikE 2 A2BER  Unrealised holding loss on
- 5073
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other investments - 5073




" MVES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIANCIAL STTEMENTS —  /

°ﬁ@Am%ﬁ¢ma

For the ¥ yéar Bnded 31 March 2006 BE-BEAE= 5= +—HLEF

7. TEES (8) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
fa) EB2E(E) (@)  Business segments (Continued)
{ii) BEAEEERHBEE (i) Ananalysis of the Group’s halance shest by business
ERERSHIOT: segments is as follows:
EFEMBI
BERHE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of B4EE MERE
electronic  Securities Property CHi
products trading development Consolidated

FEL TER TEx FER
HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HKS$'000

RZBERE At 31 March 2006

=A=t-8
BE ASSETS
SEEE Segment assets 998,807 33,339 13,426 1,045,372
E%EE%%;‘%’A AR Interest in associates 1,701
APRAREE Unallocated corporate assets 172,414
BFBEE Consolidated total assets 1,219,487
8% LIABILITIES
HERE Segment lizbilities 253,607 1,066 483 255,156
AOBELEERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 235,637
EHECE Consolidated total liabilities 430,793
‘Bﬁ:ggﬂfﬁ At 31 March 2005

ZA=t—
EE ASSETS
SBEE Segment assets 771,376 14,608 819,814
Fﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ/& AL Interest in associates 1,780
FARDFEE Unallocated corporate asssts 154,247
AETBAE Consofidated total assets 975,841
2% LIABILITIES
HEEE Segmant liabilities 176,049 41 176,290
FAMATIAE Unallocated carporate liabilities 16,184
EHE:] Consolidated total liabilities 292,474

—_—————
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBREME

For the year ended 31 March 2006 BZE RS ARE=RA=+—RL=F

DEER () 7.

HESE (b)
{i} TEBREZ-ZEX
FZAZ+—RALMWE
FEEFEMETIHE
AT ETERE RS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

(i)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover in respect of
design, manufacture and sale of electronic products
by geographical market for each of the two years
ended 31 March 2006 is as follows:

RIHEREEANET:
2006 2005
FHET FET
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
BEicEM North and South America 1,007,355 750,175
BA Europe 358,905 380,063
&8 Hong Kong 221,078 368,735
B At Mainland China 57,404 70,519
BAREEE Japan and Korea 12,306 34,580
HEER QOther countries 125,723 21,424
1,782,111 1,625,496
FEEZESEENHE The Group’s turnover in respect of the securities
BREEIBRERENT trading segment is principally related to transactions
2 X G 1EM- carried out in Hong Kong.
FTEBZMERRSE The Group’s turnover for property development is
EEHEFEREPEAM principally related to transactions carried out in
BT S8 Mainland China.

i) EEEMEREEDZ

(i

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets

DEEEREREINE and capital additions analysed by the geagraphical
EESHFIT: area in which the assets are located:
PEEEREE
Carrying amount B2
of segment assets Capital additions
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FHET FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HE Hong Kong 606,658 343,296 33,387 2,948
AR Mainland China 542,955 537,842 28,759 56,759
Efb Others 64,155 80,216 988 67
1,213,768 971,354 63,134 58,774
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NOTES T@ THHE CONSOLIDATED B WAN@HAW ST@XT‘EMENT§

Vs
ﬁ%ﬁ&% B EE
For Ihe year ended 31 March 2006 i ZE—BB R F=ZFE=+— Eit”
8. Haas 8. OTHER INCOME
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
HEi s aiE: Other income comprises:

BUEER Claims received 791 108
i Commission 6,999 11,778
ET B Design fee income 2,290 -
BEEEREZBRBIEGE Dividend income from investments held-for-trading 448 -

Emig g ol Dividend income from other investments
— LR — listed - 394
HEEE LSRN Gain on disposal of an associate - 142
ESRE: Interest income 534 292
Hit Others 2,137 5,109
Bes () Rental income (Note) 2,775 2,548
ey Repairing income 7,054 8,084
FERIEE W Sales of scrap materials 2,253 2,205
TEEBUE Tooling income 1,049 1,864
26,330 32,524
g ZHZBATAL(CETERIF T8 Note:  Qutgoings of HK$229,000 (2005: HK$116,000} were incurred resulting to

NTER) AESURFE_ER TS

ANTEAL(CEERFE 28N+ =8

net rental income of HK$2,546,000 (2005: HK$2,432,000).

THET) EEHESE.
9. BB A 9. FINANCE COSTS
2006 2005
FET FIET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE Interest on
—RAFERERHHEE - borrowings wholly repayable within
five years 11,039 5,536
~HES — a hire purchase contract - 3
—-BREERPORES — margin accounts and short term loans from
NGIPESE Y= EN brokers 2 29
BRALIR B A Factoring charges 914 1,158

11,975 6,726
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~ NOTES TO THE CO @.NS.M@ATED Y QN@M& STATEMENTS
REIBRE W

For the year ended 31 March 2006 BEZE ZFEARF=ZA=+—HLEE

10. BRELATIRA 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2006 2005
FET FHT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BEAERZE Profit before taxation has been arrived
Bk at after charging:
FREEEE Allowance for doubtful debts - 1,900
ZERENS Auditors’ remuneration 2,092 1,772
BINE BIEEEME Staff costs including directors’ remuneration
(Hie) (Note) 130,378 127,692
B BRERCER Less: Amount capitalised under product
PR A development costs - (955)
130,378 126,737
e R Depreciation and amortisation on
-EEQBEE - assets owned by the Group 45,383 46,872
—LRBANBHEZEE — assets held under a hire purchase contract - 23
45,383 46,895
EmmEN A Amortisation of product development costs 346 86
FEAHEEFIERE Release of prepaid lease payments 121 121
LEME -BERREZEI  Lossondisposal of property, plant and equipment 1,133 105
HEEMEE ZEE Loss on disposal of other investments - 31
MERFZELAELY Minimum lease payments under operating leases
BEEETH in respect of rented premises 2,211 1,794
BRERBHEHZEFR Net allowance for obsolete and sfow-moving
BiEEE inventories 499 1,367
EREBEEE Net exchange loss 1,662 3,223
A PN 6 Research and development costs written off 34,016 27,616
HisF: AREARBIRFBEREBFFEERK Note:  The staff costs for the year included retirement benefits scheme

ZEATNABAR(CEREF MAZ

t—BAFED -
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contributions of HK$3,990,000 {2005: HK$4,318,000}.




U\.TES T@ THE CONSOLIDATED FRNA{\H@ AW gTATﬁEMENTS
%“%‘Z@%ﬁhﬁﬁ{

For the yearended 31 March 2008 @228 E=ZA=+—8 L‘:i&%- - 4
1. HEREENS 11. DIRECTORS® AND EMPLOYEES® EMOLUMENTS
rEEENEEEEFHESFIEN T Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are
as follows:
BE-ZZRE=R=1+—BLEE For the year ended 31 March 2006
BEHREN
FHR SHEIMR
HEA  Retirement
Salaries benefit HemE
we and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
FER FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS 000
BITES: Executive directors:
ARSI Lau Sak Hong, Philip 50 7,206 201 7,451
215 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 50 1431 72 1,553
2858 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 50 1,401 n 1,522
EHTEE: Non-executive director:
Gy sl Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 50 - - 50
BYEHITES: Independent non-executive
directors:
Bk Ho Hau Chong, Norman 50 - - 50
BEE Chan Chak Chung 50 - - 50
sS5E Chuck Winston Calptor 50 - - 50
350 10,038 344 10,732

Annual Report 2006 67



WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— -~ -0 . S0
SORBREWE i A;;é,

For the year ended 31 March 2006 @F_F B E=A=+—BILFE

11. HEREEVS (&) 11. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
BE_ZZRF=A=T—HLEE For the year ended 31 March 2005

BAREF
FER SHEfH R
HEiER Retirement

Salaries benefit MewE

ik and other scheme Total

Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments

FET FET FET FET

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000

HTEE: Executive directors:

285z Lau Sak Hong, Philip 85 8,205 199 8489

21855 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 85 1,419 n 1575

2R Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 85 1412 64 1,561

EHITES: Non-executive director:

Eram Hon Sheung Tin, Peter * 85 - - 85

BYFHTES: Independent non-executive

directors:

o] B 8 Ho Hau Chong, Norman 85 - - 85

g Chan Chak Chung 50 - - 50

2EE Chuck Winston Calptor 50 - - 50
525 11,036 334 11,895

* BER-FENFEANA= 1 HARTHEHR * The director was re-designated as non-executive director on 30 September

T E- 2004.

e}
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* MOTES TO THECONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . —
eemmEsNE FIRARGIAL

For the year ended 31 March 2006 B8ZE —B2E A EFZE=Z+—BLFE

. EERESHS (B 1. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
&8 Employees
ﬁ'* ERiEZEsFzc ATBE=S The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three (2005:
(ZERFF =) BEE EHEFESH three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above.
EZHBEREXHE EHMEB(ZE The emoluments of the remaining two {2005: two) highest paid
TRE RE) aFHER ZMam employees are as follows:
T
2006 2005
FEL FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN R H A iE T Salaries and other benefits 796 2,140
RNERIE B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 39 47
TR Share-based payments 2,115 -
2,950 2187
hEEEME s SESMENT: Emoluments of these employees were within the following band:
BEEAE
Number of employees
2006 2005
1,000,001& 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001;% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 -
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A\ F NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
L memBmSHE o

For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE—FFAFZA=+—HUH%EE

12. BE 12. TAXATION
2006 2005
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB HERE: The charge comprises:
FENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax
REFEHE Current year 2,115 1,093
ARTSE IR A Underprovision in prior years 674 353
2,789 1,448
HabaEE 2 A Taxation in other jurisdictions
REFEHIE Current year 5,630 2,902
LRI E P 1IRBE Underprovision in prior years 38 ~
5,668 2,902
RETRIE (BE34) Deferred taxation (Note 34 2,995 1,346
gl Taxation 11,452 5,694
EENEHUARFERERTETIZ Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% {2005: 17.5%) of the
BME1I5% (ZBERRF 175%) 5t E- estimated assessable profit for the year.
HEmRER 2 HIBTREREVER 2R Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in
THERAE- the respective jurisdictions.
AEETREGSWERARKENG Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
FlERD T per the consolidated income statement as follows:

?@ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




NﬁEg TO THECONSOUDATED D FIRATCIAL STRTENETS .

13.

SR BME M

PR R M A AER 2 M-

the relevant laws and regulations in that jurisdiction.

: Fort the year ended 31 March 2006 B8Z_FF~EZEF=T—BLEE
12. BE (&) 12.  TAXATION (Continued)
2006 2005
FET FET
HKS$000 HK$'000
B AT R A Profit before taxation 90,691 56,768
BN ETBTHIRE17.5% Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5%
(ZEZTRF 175%) (2005: 17.5%)
FTE IR 15,871 9,934
TAHMHERETERE Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible
for taxation purposes 3,763 6,795
BERHNSEHIEZE Tax effect of income that is not taxable for
taxation purposes (7,052) {4,145)
BINHEER B8 Effect of overseas tax rates differences (1,243) (4,308)
REDMBEELHERZE  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised 6,706 2,839
BRI ARERZMF Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously
EEEHIETE not recognised (3,580) {5,258)
—XKH B L aFTERIE Effect of tax exemption granted to a subsidiary
BecwE (M) (Note) {3,384) -
LABTFE DR AE Underprovision in prior years 712 353
HAn Others (381) (518)
REEHRIE Taxation for the yeat 11,452 5,694
B BHBAREBEEBEREE ZERR Note:  The subsidiary is exempted fram taxation in other jurisdictions pursuant to

RE 13. DIVIDENDS
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
SR AR B AR Interim dividend paid of HK3 cents
TETRE B (2005: HKZ cents) per share 22,826 15,269
ZRNZEERERERE Final dividend paid for 2005 of HK2 cents
gRRBW (ZEEHF: (2005: final dividend paid for 2004
S ZETMERERE of HK3.5 cents) per share
3.5%81U) 15,144 26,764
37,970 42 033

EEEREE_TERFE-_A=1T—H
FEEZRBAREERIBWL (ZFR
2B B TR _ZFRFNLATA
BRIIARTBRREM 2 BR-

The directors have declared a final dividend of HK3 cents per share
for the year ended 31 March 2006 (2005: HKZ cents) to those
shareholders whose names appsar on the register of members of
the Company on 18 September 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSBLID "'XTE@ F D UCIAL STATEMENTS . T
GEMBBRENE y )

For the year ended 31 March 2006 BBEZE—SF A AEZA=+—FLFE
14, SRERN 14,  EARNINGS PER SHARE
BB EATREERRNTREBEUTER The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based
STE: on the following data:
2006 2005
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000
A EEREAR Earnings attributable to shargholders of
EERF A NGRE the Company for the purpose of basic
FE{GAT and diluted earnings per share 79141 50,526
BHEGRETRTZ Weighted average number of shares for
MEFERDEE the purpose of basic earnings per share 759,842,128 761,251,154
EBREEEEEEER Effect of dilutive potential shares relating
BERN B8 to share aptions 6,992,031 8,466,365
BAITEESREERT Weighted average number of shares for
MEEFRRHE S the purpose of diluted earnings per share 766,834,159 769,717 518
M RIFTE S EERDEERES The effect on basic and diluted earnings per share as a result of the
REBRITEEAFE. change in accounting policies as shown in notes 2 and 3 is
insignificant.
15. REWEE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2006 2005
FET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$000
REWME 2 AFE: Fair value of investment properties:
ME] At beginning of the year 61,100 53,810
EREEEYME Transferred from leasehold properties 12,709 -
NEELE N Increase in fair value 2,691 7,290
RELH At end of the year 76,500 61,100

7? STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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> 7 TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED D, FINANGCIAL STATEWENTS 7
‘%‘*A?%M%ﬁ%m? B
For the yearended 31 March 2006 HE-FSAEZA=Z+—ELEE

15. wEWE (&) 15. INVESTIMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
BEMEERERR: The carrying amount of investment properties comprises:
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBARBANES Long leases in Hong Kong 67,050 51,650
EEBIINARBABOES Long leases outside Hong Kong 9,450 9,450
76,500 61,100
FEERENMER_TTF=-FE=7 The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2006
—BzAHEREEAEETEME have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
2B A BEEEGERMETHES date by independent qualified professional valuers not connected
BB -ZBENZZRABMENER with the Group. The valuations were arrived at by reference to market
BBIB{RERC evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
FEEEERENEEARUWERES All of the Group’s property interests held under operating feases to
BERGZERYEESIURTEE earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
BRHE WARI{EREYE- N _-F the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
EREZRZ+ R ZEmEEE2 investment properties. As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of
REEATTABERATEETL (ZEZ such property interests amounted to HK$76,500,000 {2005:
AEARNTE—TEAT - HK$61,100,000).
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AN NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - - ©..
GERBREHE o

For the year ended 37 March 2006 #EZE S ¥ XF=Z/A=+—BL&FF

18. NE-BERRE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ERRE
REE
Furniture,
HENE  EERE fixtures KB BERME  RBIR
Leasehold Computer and Motor Plantand  Construction g%
properties  equipment  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total

TET FET FEL TAR TERL TEL TER
HKS000 HK3'000 HKS 000 HKS a0 HK 000 HKS 000 HKkS 000

REEREE COST OR VALUATION
R-EEMERA-R At 1 Apnil 2004 136,222 17,793 96,441 16,689 380,491 107 647,743
EiRE Currency realignment - (1) (6] ) - - 7
/J:\E Additions 1,004 2754 3057 690 51,097 - 58,042
= Disposals - - - [2.01) - - {2,001
R-EERF=F=1-H At 31 March 2005 137226 20,046 99,412 15338 431,528 107 703,657
Exge Curency realignment - B b - - - 2
WRE Additions 315 2,345 319 426 53,538 - 63,134
e Disposels - - ) w7 i (83w
BARENZE Revaluation of [easehold
sREHENE properties upon transfer
(Fys2) 10 investmen properties
{Note) 15 - - - - - 3B
BRTEDE Transfer to investment
properties {20811} - - - - - [20811)
R-8EREZA=+-H At 31 March 2006 119,855 2391 103,057 15,353 467,311 - 1973
£ Comprising;
RAE At cost 90,459 22397 103,057 15,383 467,31 - 698,573
EBE-- W% At valuation - 1981 29400 - - - - - 23400
119,855 2397 103,057 15,353 467 311 - 721913
RERBH DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
HoEERERR-B At 1 April 2004 21473 11,266 1315 13,779 246,400 - 366,033
EREE Currency realignment - (1 ol - - - (5
AERE Provided for the year 2485 1,665 5051 7 977 - 45,8%
BB Eliminated on disposals - - - (1904} - - {1,904
PZEEREZRST-B  At3! March 2005 23,958 12928 78,145 12592 28377 - 410,999
EiRg Cursency realignment - 3 1 - - - B
TERE Providad for the year 2264 1750 4,580 572 %217 - 45,383
HERRE Himinatad on disposals - - 2] (328) {14591 - 15047
BREGAMERA S liminated on transfer 1o
investment properties 8,102) - - - - - (8,102}
REBEREZAZ1T-8 A3 March 2008 18,120 14679 82,100 1283 304,903 - 433,239
RHE CARRYING VALUES
RIBEAEZAZT-B  At31 March 2006 101,735 118 20,355 1518 162,408 - 294,734
RIBERE-A=+- At 31 March 2005 113,268 7120 21,266 2746 148,151 107 292,658
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N.TES T@WT HE CCNSOLIDATED FHNAN@MM ST‘AT‘EMENTS

DB BRENE

16.

MR -BERSKE (E)
iz ER ARBRETEINELETHA
AT ARBAR S HE D RS
RANE -mnE R RREHRARE
MEN RENEBER SHATEE
M=+ BRI S ARG E
BEfE

ERAREMFE R TELBESFUE
RERZEN+FTETE-TEUIM
EMENEESFUEREERA TR
(BEEFH) BHOMBTHAESR
e

EmE BERRETIRAGT IR
FHREHRERETEITEUMEER
FRRFERIT:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:  During the year, the Group rented out certain of its leasehold properties to
outsiders for rental income. Those properties should be accounted for as
investment properties. Upon the transfer from property, plant and equipment
to investment properties, those properties were revalued with the increase
in fair value of HK$325,000 credited to the other property valuation reserve.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong is
depreciated over forty years on a straight line basis. The cost of
leasehold properties outside Hong Kong is amortised over a period
of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining term of the leases on a
straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing
balance method at the following rates per annum:

EIRE 25% Computer equipment 25%

B HBEREE 10— 25% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 -25%

TE 20— 25% Motor vehicles 20 - 25%

RS R e 28 15— 30% Plant and machinery 15-30%

LFHEEYEIEEFERE: The net book value of the leasehold properties shown above
comprises:

2006 2005

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

EEEURHANESR Medium leases in Hong Kong 27,860 40,663

EEBLSNARERLEE  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 73,875 72,505

101,735 113,268

HEMER—RBYEEGHEMITR—
AN—FIRBRERSEE AEHET
LEM-AEERAE BT ERFE 16
EEOAREER T EHERASEHA
EMEZBERRGE WL BEE—
EEEEDE - WIEEMERARER
EMEREIRESEY R -EEY
ERN_BEERE=-A=-+—B2ZFREE
TEH%Z’]?%_? BARATABE-FET
(ZEEAF —TOEAT_EZTE
JT) e

The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by a firm of
independent professional valuers in 1991 on an open market value
for existing use basis. The Group has adopted the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 18 from the requirement to make
revaluation on a regular basis of the Group's leasehold properties
and, accordingly, no further revaluation of leasehold properties will
be carried out. Had these leasehold properties been carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
the net book value of the leasehold properties at 31 March 20056
would have been stated at HK$21,652,000 (2005: HK$24,923,000).
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CANBREMT - o
For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE =S FAE=A=+—SLEE =T
7. RAEERIE 17.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
FEEZENEERERE: The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRHEUPERORE Leasehold land held under medium term leases
ZHEELTH in the PRC 4,378 4,499
MEmENSIT A Analysed for regorting purposes as:
mEIEE S Current portion 121 121
ERBH D Non-current portion 4,257 4,378
4,378 4,499
18. EREBRAE 18. PRODUCT DEVELCPMENT COSTS
FET
HKS 000
RAE ‘ COST
BE-FTRF=A=+—H1t Costsincurred during the year ended 31 March 2005 and
FERABEZRER balance at 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2006
RoZERE-AZ+-—8R
—TEREZAZ+-BzES 1,732
B AMORTISATION
EE-FERE=ZRA=+—Ri  Charge for the year ended 31 March 2005 and
FENRER-_ZERF balance at 31 March 2005
ZR=t—-Bz&R 86
BEZZTE=A=F—81 Charge for the year ended 31 March 2008
FENR 346
RZEEREZF=Z+—H At 31 March 2006 432
EEE CARRYING VALUE
RIBEREZR=+—8 At 31 March 2006 1,300
NZETRE=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2005 1,646
EmRABEXEAUNEREDAFTHE- Product development costs are amortised over a period of 5 years on

a straight line basis.
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) H\MOTES T@ THE -CONSOLIDATED F]NAN@DAL ST‘A‘TEMENTS
%’T*A@M%iﬁ% B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2006 8%

19.

SRPAFZAZ—ALEE

ks 18. GOODWILL
FHET
HK$ 000
RAE cosT
RIFERENA-RR At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005
—ZEERFE=R=+—H 16,575
TR HREERER Elimination of accumulated amortisation upon application
Fretss Rarisy (Msz2) of HKFRS 3 fnote 2) (7,426)
WZETRAFNA—HR At 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006
ZEERFZRA=T—H 9,149
B AMORTISATION
RZETMEMF—R At 1 April 2004 4,738
SR Charge for the year 2,688
R-EERF=/=+—48 At 31 March 2005 7426
RME BN BRSENESR Elimination of accumulated amortisation upon application
FrefsHRtEE (F772) of HKFRS 3 {note 2) (7,426)
RZZETRFEE—BR At 1 April 2005 and 31 March 2006
e = -
FREE CARRYING VALUES
RZBEXEZF=+—H At 31 March 2006 9,149
RIBTRF=RA=+—H At 31 March 2005 9,149

BEZRERFFERIINHT 2 -

EEZ-EERE=A=+—H BEH

—E+FHEE

in note 21.

ranged from 3 to 10 years.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed

Until 31 March 2005, goodwill has been amortised over a period
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE-HBXREZA=+—41LtFE

20.

21.

=Lk 20. NEGATIVE GOODWILL
FHET
HK$'000
) GROSS AMOUNT
RIZEENFENS—HR At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005
“EERAFZA=+—H 6,999
?ﬁll&ﬁ RELEASED TO INCOME
AZETNENA-BR 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005
ZETERE=/=+—H (6,999)
Eﬁﬁfﬁ CARRYING VALUE
ZEERE=F=+—H At 31 March 2005 -

BERENR
HIEETATEE ARBEURBOBEER
i&“‘:’\*ééﬂé’lzgﬁ_ﬁ ?ytf)i@ RIS

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
As explained in note 7, the Group uses business segments as its
primary segment for reporting segment information. For the purposes

BRI S e BEF of impairment testing, goodwill as set out in note 19 has been
D%:&;f %sz@g%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁf allocated to the cash generating unit ("CGU") of the design,
(MFREEEEML))- manufacture and sale of electronic products segment.

ReELEUNANEEERERE
ERE-TEERBEMELDEZRMRR
BRBERE BEZURFEANATE
BRAZENEE - ERERARUA
HERBETMR R L ERRTIZHER
HERBRENRREELEISER
e E- B REBURNERTEIAE
B AREFERAZ RERBEIR
HAIBRREEH B EER AT

RAFE ~EBREEEEENI42
RRAFRMHVEEESERERE
BARNEERE MERZERES
8% o RN IEAKRMBEHE ERER
ERESELEUZERE RREE
BHERRRESE-
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' The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined on the

basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
inuse calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years approved by management using a
discount rate of 8%. The value in use calculated by using the discount
rate is higher than the carrying amount of CGU, accordingly, no
impairment loss was considered necessary.
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 BARBRENE

\Forthe JearEnded 31 March 2006 BE ST/ A= F=t—mirEE
22. FE{REkeE N EER 22, INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2006 2005
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIS AFHIRER A 38 Cost of investments in associates, unlisted 1,066 7,066
PG UREBIE G Share of post-acquisition reserves (4,444) (4,365)
2,622 2,701
JB B ERBEEE Less: Impairment losses recognised (921) {921)
1,701 1,780

AEBBELFRRZEEFE=A=+ Details of the Group's associates at 31 March 2006 are as follows:

—HZHEEMT:
Hm/ FREEL
ES 1T S ExibE B
Form of Place of SEREFHEE Attributable
BELFEE business registration/  Nominal value of  equity interest ~TE#H
Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activity
IREBETERRA AfERE hEARAA 800,000 7T 6875% EEEH
([db 7 s8] ) Co-operative ([ IJ) US$800,000 (RT3 Inactive
Beijing Commune Fair joint venture People’s Republic {ses below)
Electrorics Co. Ltd. of China {"PRC")
("Beijing Commune”)
Danehill Investments EBREERF Heks 7,000,000 7T 1828% REER
(Holdings) Limited Limited liability Cayman Islands HK$7,000,000 Investment holding
company

IEREER—AN_F T AEMKIA
BERE RETLF-RERSE &&
BEHEIRALTHBETER EER
M ZS1E2568.75% © AERE D IRB AR
BB uEE AEEERILR
BES0% A HE R AREIIEE
IRFEEER ZZHE EERTRE
REBR_EE-F+ R L EHE

Beijing Commune was incorporated s a joint venture company for a
term of fifteen years commencing October 1992. Under the agreement,
the Group is committed to invest an amount of US$550,000,
representing an equity interest of 68.75%. The Group has fully
contributed the amount committed. During the life of the agreement,
the Group is entitled to share 50% of the profit or loss of Beijing
Commune. The Group does not have controlling interest in the board
of directors of Beijing Commune but is able to exercise significant

BN E EFEETREMETBRES
EUHE M EZEE -ESEMNNLRER
FEIGE 2 BREE  WERAT AR g2k
RILREE s MBHFREZIEE
HETEBEREREREEMN- .lﬂi B
PRREERREEENTZE—TF
To LARRSERRIRE 2 BREE

B AT AL AREE

influence. In October 2002, the business certificate of Beijing
Commune has been cancelled by the PRC government as the company
did not renew its business certificate. The directors reviewed the
carrying amount of the investment in Beijing and Commune and
considered that it is unlikely to recover the interest in Beijing
Commune and the present value of the estimated cash flows expected
to arise from the investment are minimal. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of HK$921,000 was recognised in the financial statements to
write down the carrying amount of the investment.

The associates are indirectly held by the Company.
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EABBREHE o | RO

for the year ended 31 March 2006 #ZE =SS ~F=ZA=+—RBIFE
22, EBiEBeNRER (& 22. INTEREST 1IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
ERREERELR M BENBER The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
T associates is set out below:
2006 2005
FHT FET
HK3$000 HK$000
EERE Total assets 6,747 6,923
BIERE Total liabilities (3,941) (11,336)
EEFE(BERH Net assets (liabilities) 2,806 (4,413)
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,701 1,780
- Turnover - 2
FAEIE Loss for the year (45) {1,202)
EIRE DB ELE Share of results of associates (79) (378)
23 THIERE 23,  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
RoBEXEZA=+—B 5#HHE Available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2006 comprise:
HEBE:
FET
HK$'000
REES Equity securities
JE LMD IR A Unlisted shares, at cost 26,690
B CHRREES Less: Impairment losses recognised (2,500)
24,180
REBEIN ETRRD B ATFE Listed shares outside Hong Kong, at fair value 59

MEBAEST A
REE D

FERES

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current portion 150
Non-current portion 24,099
24,249

Y STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEmmRsNE

Far the yéarended 31 March 2006 E#ZE 2R ARE=A=+—BLLEE

23.

ITES T0 THECONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STRTENENTS.  —~

AHHERE (&)

REER BEQLFEREAEFEZ
SELMERTIREIN B AIHHERE
BURHES SR BERREZAFER
SERRTBMBEANEBERE-

LHLGE ETIRE AR EREMAIALA
HERBT 2 LTRAELFRE -
BEATERHBEER FREES
RAREAEFEELTE BZE
AR EERERENBRRETH-

FEMRABHFPRENMESREITR
FARHREMB RIS 2 2 FINet Plus
Company Limited ( [Net Plus ) 17%A% 24
BRIEENEZAST B EBS
ZRPREZRAZMirBERERE
REEEMEEDE ¥RAE TR
2B E PNet Plus 2 125 Bl EREF
BRExBAREER_EATEST
DRz EAsEEEEET kDS
BRI EERE-R=T—H %4
DEREFESICE (M1iE24) - WHRETER
REAMEEBE-_ERATESIT-

23.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As at the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value, except for those unlisted equity investments of
which their fair values cannot be measured reliably. Fair values of
those investments have been determined by reference to bid prices
quoted in active markets.

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in Hong Kong.
They are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet
date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directars of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Included in unlisted equity securities was a 17% equity interest in
Net Plus Company Limited ("Net Plus”), a company engaged in
investment holding and provision of healthcare related services. At
31 March 2006, the directors reviewed its carrying amount with
reference to the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the investment and considered that it is unlikely
to recover the full amount of the interest in Net Plus and accordingly
an impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 was recognised in the financial
statements to write down the carrying amount of the investment to
its recoverable amount. At 31 March 2005, the investment was
classified as investment securities (Note 24) and an impairment loss
of HK$2,500,000 was recognised in the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 B@Z -3 A"FE=A=Z+—BUEE

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Upon the application of HKAS 39 on 1 April 2005, investment
securities were reclassified to appropriate categaries under HKAS
39 (see note 2 for details). Investment securities as at 31 March 2005
are set out below:

24, BERE 24,
R-_EERENA—-EEAEESHE
BIEINE RERBADRETEES
ERBENRENSBEFESERFER
fi3x2) RZEERE=ZAZT—HZ
REEHFEIMT:

BEES HibrE
Investment Other HE
securities investments Total
2009 2005 2005
FET FExT FET
HK$'000 HKE000 HK$'000
IREFES: Equity securities:
£ Listed
gk Hong Kong - 1011 10117
BN Overseas 8,106 23,476 31,582
8,106 33,587 41693
BB HERRERE Less: Impairment losses recognised (8,012) - (8,012)
94 33,587 33,681
JEET Unlisted
B Hong Kong 26,540 150 26,690
SR Overseas - - -
26,540 150 26,690
5 B RRBIEEE Less: Impairment losses recognised (2,500) - {2,500)
24,040 150 24,190
24,134 33,737 57.871
EmBEHrmE Market value of listed securities 94 33,587 33,681
FEERE®RED Carrying amount analysed for
[T Rii=F reporting purposes as:
RE Current - 33,737 33,737
FEME Non-current 24,134 - 24134
24,134 57,871

82 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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 RENBRENE

Forthe yearended 31 March 2006 BE—FFERE=ZA=+— Eﬁif‘

25 fIES@mIA
RZBEREZR=+T—B #FEEAR
ORI AZUTEEmI EHAWNT:

26.

27.

25.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Derivative financial instruments not designated as hedging
instruments as at 31 March 2006 are as faollows:

EE =L
Assets Liabilities
FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$000

AR BIE

Options on equity securities

—-REAEL™T - listed in Hong Kong - (15)

—REESEI T ~ listed outside Hong Kong - (439)
RAESZBERERRE Buy-write certificates on equity securities

~REBLT — listed in Hong Kong 2,328 -

—REBEBEI LT — listed outside Hong Kong 2,331 -

4,659 (454)

FRTTESRT ARSLEERRELTE The above derivative financial instruments are measured at fair valug

E-ENTFEDNRBEHETANEE
BB EEE-

at each balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined based
on the quated market prices for equivalent instruments at the balance
sheet date.

#E 26. INVENTORIES
AEE
THE GROUP
2006 2005
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rt Raw materials 152,979 129,768
bas Work in progress 17,387 13,335
S m Finished goods 205,668 160,667
376,034 303,770
RAEFE FERINEGE R ERTER The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the consolidated
AYHNET—B-T-B-T=8% income statement during the year amountad to HK$1,172,730,000
T ZEERFE T—E-FAEO+T= (2005: HK$1,119,436,000).
BATET) .
FEYXE 27. PROPERTIES FOR SALE

BEDERAFRERSRINBRZEAAS
Z(CETR - MBELTETETE
JT) e

The cost of properties for sale recognised as an expense in the income
statement during the year amounted to nif (2005: HK$4,705,000).
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HEGRENE

NOTES TG THE @@%%@iﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ@ F%“@AE‘@@%&. STATEMENTS-

FEREFZAZT—RLER

For the year ended 31 March 2006 B#E_=F

BUERR BEREMRE 28.

RZZEEREZA=1T—0 EUEN
e RBAFREERKE SRR _(E
AFZBITRBOTERL(ZETH
E-FRTNE-_tEEERL -RF
ERRRESERICERESTAOT:

DEBTORS, DEPGSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

At 31 March 2006, debtars, deposits and prepayments included trade
debtors of HK$252,264,000 (2005: HK$148,270,000). The aged
analysis of trade debtors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2006 2005

FET FAET

HK$000 HK$'000

0—30H 0 - 30 days 194,355 78,296
31—-60H — 60 days 21,267 11,015
—90H 61 — 90 days 10,560 23,688
HBHA%0F Over 90 days 26,082 35,271
252,264 148,270

TEFREESRFIEHTH AEN0E
90H  #Hi-

&f‘gﬁza¥{ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ$éﬂgﬁiﬁf§$ﬁ%°

Bk (BA) BE 2 8RE 28.

UL (B RIBREER 2ERERE

KEFERE.

84 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30 days to
90 days to its trade customers.

The fair value of debtors and deposits as at 31 March 2006
approximates the corresponding carrying amount.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The fair value of amounts due from (to) associates as at 31 March
2006 approximates the corresponding carrying amount.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 B#E— T2 AE=R=+—-HLt&EE

30.

31.

FHEEHRE 30. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING
RIEERE=ZA=+—RB ##FEE Investments held for trading as at 31 March 2006 include:
REBIE:
FET
HK$'000
EHEE Listed securities
WEZ LTRAEE Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 7,335
REBEIN EHRAES Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong 16,230
REBEI ETREE S Debt securities listed outside Hong Kong
EREH 4,202
27,767
REER FEREEEREAURT As at the balance sheet date, all investments held for trading are
EfR-FERE2 2T EESETR stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been
MSAREANEEE- determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.
RITHGBRES 31. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

RITHEBEESREAEBABRES
MERERZEASUA TR BT
FEBI20E(ZETRF045E) 28
BRI ER-BERA BITa%LES
ZEEEREAFTERE.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
at an average interest rate of 1.20% (2005: 0.45%). The directors
consider the carrying amount of the bank balances and cash
approximates its fair value.

85
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- NOTESTQ TEﬂAE@@E\HSNLDILWED D FIINA J“ IAL STATEVIENTS
HEMBREME

For the year ended 31 March 2006 &=

ZRBERFZAZT-BLEFE

%ﬁ

B4 SRR R ET R

RIFEREZR=1+—8B EBIER
REHERBRERNESERR-E
—BE=TRELTERT(ZZ

FRE—

32. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

At 31 March 2006, creditors and accrued charges included trade

—F creditors of HK$211,357,000 (2005; HK$141,037,000). The aged

BOT—BZE=BLTET) REEH

BITESERRESITET

analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2006 2005
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
0—308 0 —-30days 94,875 48,124
—60H - 60 days 44,773 21,475
—90E - 90 days 23,796 17,184
FB3890H Over 90 days 47,913 54,254
211,357 141,037
RZEERFZR=+—H ENER The fair value of creditors as at 31 March 2006 approximates the
AT EEEERREEAES- corresponding carrying amount,
=N 33. BORROWINGS
2006 2005
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRELT: Borrowings comprise the following:
EFERBRADER Trust receipts and import loans 105,646 60,024
EBREBRREMREERZEZ  Loans related to bills discounted with recourse 66,065 -
BREBLRER (A7) Debt factoring loans (Note) 28,470 35,712
HEER Short term loans 20,611 12,866
220,792 108,602
HiEH Secured 95,146 36,580
= Unsecured 125,646 71,922
220,792 108,602
Bt Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ* REETRTLEESEK Note.  Amount represents loans drawn against trade receivables sold to certain

REXZER

banks.

3
O STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A

For the yearended 31 March 2006 & ZE Z2F <

V) 5 R B R

FZRZ+—HILEFE

33.

R (&)
FEEZEFAN—FRHEBREE
BZRRER UREERITAERS
RIBEEIEAE-NEGREE-

UHEE S E BRI B AN ERIIE
ZEEREERBIET:

33.

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's barrawings are floating-rate barrowings which are
repayable within one year or on demand. The interest is charged at a
range from 1.25% — 2% over the Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate.
Interest is repricing every month.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

E =
United States Japanese

dollars Yen

FET THE

‘000 ‘000

RZBEREZA=+—8H At 31 March 2008 23,276 89,301
R_BERFE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2005 12,499 39,008
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GEMBREKE . oy
For the year ended 31 March 2006 B ZE R B AEZA=+—B 155 R
34 IRAEH A 34. DEFERRED TAXATION
REERBAFECERETERIEMRE The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
BEREENHEENT: recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years:
MERERE
Accelerated MESH HESE
tax Revaluation Tax 2 B8
depreciation of properties losses Others Total

TET TEL FAET FET TET
HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK8 000

WIZEZNEMNA—B At 1 April 2004
- BRRHT - as originally stated (1,376 (1,267 2,545 98 -
—BIHEREY ~ effects of changes in
b accounting policies
(M2 R3) (notes 2 and 3) - {1,268} - - {1,288)
{1,376) (2,555) 2,545 %8 (1,288
EREB) FTARS Credit {charge) to income for
the year 816 (1,014) {1.324) 176 {1,346)
RZEERE-R=+—8 At 31 March 2005 {560) {3,569} 1,221 274 (2.634)
ERGA) NERE (Charge} credit to income for
the year (10,639 1,258 6,386 - - (2.995)
RZEERFZAZ+—H At 31 March 2006 {11,199} (2.311) 7607 774 (5.629)
HENEESERME STRCEEE For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain deferred
LREBEDHH-BEMERSRARZER tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
ERIBBAATIAT: analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2006 2005
FET FET
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BIEFIEAE Deferred tax assets 1,929 42
EREBIBRE Deferred tax liabilities (7,558) (2,678)
(5,629) {2,634)
BN RERI AR IEFOR REEW The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect of tax
ERREEE BT ABNTEER losses of HK$179,876,000 (2005: HK$223,126,000) due to the
TEL(CZEERFE ZEF=F—+ unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
ZERTET) BREEMIEEE - RE tax losses are losses of HK$82,513,000 (2005: HK$81,136,000) that
E@ﬁﬁ@ﬂfé@%/\?:ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ—gi? will expire in the years of 2007 to 2019 {2005: 2006 to 2018}, other
BT (ZEEAE N NFT-E—T=Z8X tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

FEL)ER-_ZL+FE_T-NE
(ZEZRRF ZSERFE_E—-N
F) R B EEEA ER A
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For fhe yaar ended 31 March 2006 B#EE —BRAE=ZR=+— E&ET‘
35, R A 35. SHARE CAPITAL
ReEE FET
Number
of shares HK$'000

EREAELLETT . EABR Ordinary shares of HK$0.40 each
SETE A Authorised:
R-ZEEMFENLNA—H- At 1 April 2004, 31 March 2005

“EEREZR and 31 March 2008

ST —HRZIZFEEREF

=ZHA=+—H 1,250,000,000 500,000
BRI REERE: Issued and fully paid:
R-TEFMFOA—H At 1 April 2004 757,219,982 302,888
TR RT Issue of shares upon exercise of

2 B9 share options 7,455,632 2,982
B Repurchase of shares (2,067,500) (827)
RIBFERF=-A=+—8 At 31 March 2005 762,608,114 305,043
TR M ETT Issue of shares upon exercise of

Pt share options 4,500,000 1,800
BERR Repurchase of shares (6,227,500) {2,491)
R-BEXREZ/R=ZT—H At 31 March 2006 760,880,614 304,352

BRE|EBITRAZEBFENT: Details of the changss in the share capital of the Company are as

follows:

(a) R-BZENFE+ A - FAREIET (a)
SBREER B ATE B AR
BIAEAR040E T2 BIRETH
BUNtHREEBERT R REZT =
HREEAETLZ A

In July 2004, 5,455,632 shares of HK$0.40 each were issued
at HK$0.40 per share as a result of the exercise of the certain
share options of the Company by their holders.

bl RIZETMEA[ EFRTET (b}
BRBERSEATE BRALR
EUABRO40E T 2 BREIT
HEEREHREELVETZR

{ne

In September 2004, 2,000,000 shares of HK$0.40 each were
issued at HK$0.40 per share as a result of the exercise of the
certain share options of the Company by their holders.

89
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HEVBREME

For the year ended 31 March 2006 B2 =2%F

FREZAZ+H—BLEER

35. R ()

(c)

(d)

WRE-TFRFSAS+—
BLEEER A TER AR
BIEBRANT:

33, SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(c)

The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 March 2005 as follows:

BRER

ROEE Price per share #BRE

Number BfE B Aggregate

A4 Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
BT BT FET

HKS HKS HK$'000

ZEEMENR August 2004 1,217,500 0.79 0.80 964
—EEOF TR October 2004 850,000 0.80 0.81 685
2,067,500 1,649

A LR ID R mE B sy MR
NEDBETRADZREBUSAR
(DEERERER L - BRI 28
BB R SUEAN-BSNEE
R EE BER B ETR
ERERTELFEE-

EZZEERE+A RRFE
FHEREREEATE BItA
DEAER067B T 2 BIZETT
—HETEREREEIET
el 3k

E-BERFE-R FRAET
BREESEATE Braa
AIAEBR0AETZ BRETZ
BEERSREECOETZE
e

20
9 O STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

=

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares. The premium on repurchase was charged
against accumulated profits. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from accumulated
profits to the capital redemption reserve.

(d)

(e)

In December 2005, 1,500,000 shares of HK$0.40 each were
issued at HK$0.67 per share as a result of the exercise of the
certain share options of the certain share options of the
Company by their holders.

In January 2006, 3,000,000 shares of HK$0.40 each were
issued at HK$0.40 per share as a result of the exercise of the
certain share options of the Company by their holders.
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 RETBRENTE |
Forthe year ended 31 March 2006 BEE—FFAE=ZA=T—HUEE
35, R (&) 35.  SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(f) EREE-ETRE=ZA=1+— (f) The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock
BLEEEA AAREBFRE Exchange during the year ended 31 March 2008 as follows:
EIERR DT
FERSR
HEE40E T2
REEA SRER
Number of shares Price per share #AE
of HK$0.40 BRiE B Aggregate
At Month each repurchase Lowest Highest  consideration
Ei BT FET
HK$ HK$ HK$000
ZEThEWNA April 2005 385,000 0.67 0.68 260
_':i;,ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ May 2005 417,500 0.68 0.69 284
TETAFRA June 2005 700,000 0.68 0.70 483
“ETRENAR August 2005 1,082,500 0.58 0.58 628
“FERFNA September 2005 1,800,000 0.56 0.59 1,040
—EERETA October 2005 1,642,500 0.56 0.59 944
ZEERE+FR November 2005 200,000 0.89 0.69 138
6,227,500 3,777

VA ERR PRI E E 8 AR
AR BITRADRERULFRD
EERER S -BERD ZEE
EHEBFHAEF FEFREZHR
fEEZEBEHERHRTENE
BERAEDEE

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium
on repurchase was charged against accumulated profits. An
amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits to the
capital redemption reserve.

FERBETROHES T EEREDHT
BN EERS R

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares is
issued in all respects.
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 BZE S8R AREZ A=+ FLFE

NOTES TO THE @‘@NS@&EIMEI FI@%%E%EM STATEMENTS ; ; .

36. IRRRERTE 36.
REARSTN-NANEFNACEET
ZBRRERAGMBERBAHNFZ
BREE ([ NANEFEE)) EF
BEEFAEETASERZETIRTE
g REALNTZRG BREARAER
HBARZES MR TZERES
RTEREERETRAFAAITRE.
EEBRENETEAENSERE-BR
BZENZAEEREN CEESINET
BB RER S B 2 FHREK
REZ80% - RS ER%E.

BRE-ANCFFEMRLBRES

SHARE QPTION SCHEME

Under the Company’s share option scheme which was approved and
adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held on 7
April 1997 {*1997 Scheme”) for a period of 4 years, the directors may
grant options to any eligible employees of the Group, including
directors, of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Options granted are exercisable within a period of
five years commencing from the date of grant of the aptions. Each
share option vested immediately at the date of grant. The subscription
price of the option shares is the higher of the nominal value of the
shares and an amount which is not less than 80% of the average of
the last dealt prices of the shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer of the options.

The movements of the aptions granted under the 1997 Scheme were

W as follows:
BRERA
Number of share options
RED HEFE RER
e R AT WATHE M RITHE
THEE Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
Exercsie at heginning during atend
BFEHY Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
ET
HK$
HE_ZTTHE For the year endad
ZA=+—8 31 March 2005
HEE
—ANNELAZE 2 July 1999 0.40 5,455,632 5,455,632 -
FRIAFIRE Exercisable at the end
of the year -
TR E Weighted average
(Bx) exercise price (HKS) 0.40 040 -

ARBIRZEF_FAAT-RAETK
REASRERAANAE B
a8 ([ 22T _F58l) -&stilg
ERSREHAEEEL 2 BRI MHE
BrER-ZE 0 ARSEARR
TAER FNTER BRI RBEHE
B EP Wl ARBERARANEEEMA
KE DR ZBRE.
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A new share aption scheme was approved and adopted at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 12 September 2002 (2002
Scheme”) for a period of 5 years. The primary purpose is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme included any employees,
nan-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
advisors or consultant and shareholders of any member of the Group.
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BRERS BB FEWHE Sk
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36.

SHARE QPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares options which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and
other share option scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% while overall limit for all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant in any 12 months period up to
the date of the grant will not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option
is any period as determined by the Board, which will not be more
than 5 years from the date on which the option is granted. The option
may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the option period.
Each share option vested immediately at the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the Board,
but will be no less than the highest of (i} the closing price of the
shares on the offer date; (ii} the average of the ciosing price of the
shares of the 5 trading day immediately preceding the offer date; ar
{iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHERME (Continued)

The movements of the options granted under the 2002 Scheme were

BT as follows:
BRERS
Number of share optinos
REH EEEE EEEE RER
MARTE REF AT e K176
%€  Outstanding Granted Exercised  Qutstanding
Exercsie  at beginning during during at end
=R Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year
BT
HKS
B2-TERE For the year ended
ZR=+—HBLEE 31 March 2008
~“EE=FERA-A 2 May 2003 040 4,700,500 - 3,000,000 1,700,500
“ERZETATH 10 October 2003 0.86 15,144,000 - - 15,144,000
“EEMENAZ-THA 24 August 2004 0.808 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
ZEENET—-AZA 2 November 2004 0.814 2,650,000 - - 2,650,000
ZETRE- AR 7 February 2005 0.67 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
“EERFT-FZTZB 22 December 2005 0.80 - 4,910,000 - 4,910,000
ZEERE-RAnd 5 January 2006 0.89 - 19,160,000 - 19,160,000
26,994,500 24,070,000 4,500,000 46,564,500
FERATFIE Exercisable at the end
of the year 46,564,500
IET1TEE (B) Weighted average
exercise price (HKS) 078 087 0.49 084
BE_EZRE For the year ended
=R=+—-RILFE 31 March 2005
—Z2=FRAZH 2 May 2003 0.40 6,700,500 - 2,000,000 4,700,500
—ET=FTATH 10 October 2003 0.86 15,144,000 - - 15,144,000
ZFENFENAZTIA 24 August 2004 0.808 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
“EZNF+-FZA 2 November 2004 0814 - 2,650,000 - 2,650,000
ZERRF_RER 7 February 2005 0.67 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
21,844,500 7,150,000 2,000,000 26,894,500
FRUPITE Exercisable at the end
of the year 26,394,500
IMEFHTRE (B) Weighted average
exercise price (HK$) 072 0.78 040 0.76

9@ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36.

BREEE ()
ARFLERE-NNLELFAER
T EHERTESEM ﬁ%ﬂxﬁé

AEER HRBIEEFZRBRER
NZERERIET (CTERE 98

7T e

RATERNETFE2ERENS BT
FEBZIEFHBRESER0MET
(ZETTF 0858mT)

BE_ZTXRE-A=-+—RALLEE
W$ T SRR _EEREE+_F -
+oBR-EESAFE-ARAHEER
BRI AREE Z BB DT
ESRIEER014B T R0I8E T

El

o

.,

BELFENRRBAR - SRNEE
BAEE-BAREN 2 ZBBEEHT
T

IEFEARE 080B T=089% T
TEE 080/ T=0.898 7T
SEELNUE 30.90% —31.74%
FEHE 3E

R f R =R 3.92%—4.14%
TEHARR B 5 5.92% —6.01%

BE R RTRAA R AR ENBE—
mﬁiﬁﬁﬁgﬁmtm&ﬁ%%ﬁ%
FHTREEER AR 2T 1
ERE R AL ERE LS EE
F AR

AEERBEZETANEA=+—8
HEE AL ERE 2 BRI ER A
XEB-BE=-thE_TER(CER
HEH) -

3B,

SHARE QPTION SCHEME (Continued)
No share options have been granted to the directors of the Company
pursuant to the 1997 Scheme and 2002 Scheme.

Total consideration received during the year from employees for taking
up the options granted amounted to HK$3 (2005: HK$8).

In respect of the share aptions exercised during the year, the weighted
average share price at the date of exercise of HK$0.94 (2005: HK$0.85)
per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, options were granted on 22
December 2005 and 5 January 2006. The estimated fair values of the
options granted on those dates are HK$0.14 and HK$0.18 per share
respectively.

These fair values were calculated using The Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

HK$0.80 — HK$0.89
HK$0.80 — HK$0.89
30.90% - 31.74%

Weighted average share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility

Expected life 3years
Risk-free rate 3.92% —4.14%
Expected dividend yield 5.92% t0 6.01%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous one year. The expected
life used in the madel has been adjusted, based on management'’s
best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$3,392,000 for the year

ended 31 March 2006 (2005: nil) in relation to share options granted
by the Company.
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HEZEHEERE 2B
RIBZ_F ARAZ2ENMEBLF
EXHERQF([ER])E—EBYF
ZHRETEETRELF ([FESE
BRE ) FEITHE B TEN #£RF
ZR-EDEAERCEZBHEIME.
REHR ZEEHZDEZRARE
Re ARBAERT MTESLAT
RIFREREBRARE-T-HEtE
TRERR TRALLTRAIELE
DECREENSERARBZEE
TLXABAESEERYEEEMS
ERARBZBEN N+ B -%BT 5
18R T EBUAG6%

WZBEREZF=+—HB F&EE
BB ECRAEAAREER L
BMEERBRAGRREERZBENT:

37.

INTERESY IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED OPERATIONS

In 2002, Niceday Limited ("Niceday"), a whaolly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement with %5 T i2EE T 12
4825 ("PRC joint venture party”), an independent third party, for
the re-development of properties under development into a residential
and commercial complex known as Fortune Garden, excluding the
basement level. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Niceday
will contribute the subject development site and a cash sum of
RMB5,000,000 whilst the PRC joint venture party will bear the
development cost of RMB11,500,000. Under the agreement, the PRC
joint venture party will receive the first RMB3,000,000 sale proceeds
from property sales and then Niceday will receive the following sale
proceeds of RMB3,820,000. Niceday is entitled to 56% of ali the
remaining sales proceeds.

At 31 March 2006, the aggregate amount of assets and liabilities
recognised in the Group's financial statements in refation to the
interest in jointly controlied operation is as follows:

2006 2005
FHEZ FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets 3,973 3,466
BE Liabilities - 73
EEH Turnover - 5,245
AEEEEELE Result attributable to the Group (1,297} {234)
BFRE 38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENBRETBRSE Capital expenditure contracted for but not
BEZWEBYDE BE pravided in the financial statements in
REBEZETER respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 3,104 6,310
EENEREMERS Capital expenditure contracted for but not
BEIUENBLR provided in the financial statements in
ZERER respect of acquisition of subsidiaries 7,769 -

g@ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38.

39.

BEXRE (B 38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)
RZBEZERFZAZ+—E - A~&EEH On 21 February 2006, the Graup entered into a securities gurchase
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. ([SMC ) agreement with The Singing Machine Company, Inc. {("SMC") to
SN EBARSRS UBRINETZ acquire and subscribe for 12,875,536 new shares of SMC, which
ERRERAEM—TFTZaNA++E represent 127.98% of the existing issued share capital and
FEFREA=TETED EEREE approximately 56.14% of the issued share capital of SMC as enlarged
B E7TAR 127 .98% R SMCEE R 38 12 8477 by the allotment and issue of the new shares, at the price of US$0.233
FRGEER 2 B BITARARLI56.14% per share. The total consideration is US$3,000,000 (equivalent to
BEREA-ZHEEZT(HEERZ=F=8 HK$23,306,000). In addition to the new shares, SMC will issue
=FETRTE) JBRIFRG SN SMC warrants to the Group at nif consideration. The warrants contain the
U ERBRRERETRRES- rights to purchase up to 5,000,000 additional shares of SMC at prices
ZERREBNEEN TRZHER of US$0.233 {the initial price paid on a per share basis), US$0.28
REE—RBE FZBERENAES (equals to 120% of the initial price) and US$0.35 (equals ta 150% of
102335 IRERBRNEEZ 29 the initial price) on the first, third and fourth anniversary of the closing
WEH) 028 GEERTIHER date of the transaction. The transaction has not been completed as
120%) }0.35F T (HHERT L EHE at the date of this report.
150%) 2 BB ARSZ DB BHRSMCE
HMNRD - RIER B RS A B R
o
RIBFREZANE REEEESMC On 8 March 2008, the Group entered into a bridge loan agreement
FIBEERE - RIEZ R AR with SMC. Pursuant to the bridge loan agreement, the Group granted
BPM—E-FE&Ex HER—TF a loan of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,537,000) to SMC for
ABERT=EETET) CER LED redemption of its outstanding debentures. The loan can be repaid
HEREEZBEF - REERAMUES either in cash or offset against the purchase consideration to be paid
BEINZ B TR ERTEBRSMCE by the Group to SMC upon completion of the transaction. Accordingly,
HEAREEE-Bl REE0 8E the bridge loan is recorded as a deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries
BEFSERENBLATZEIE TR at the balance sheet date, and the remaining balance of US$1,000,000
BE-BEET(EERLELTAEN {equivalent to approximately HK$7,769,000) is disclosed as a capital
T Ble R RS BE TR ERE- commitment of the Group.
HARE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2006 2005
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
RRBRITARER Bills discounted with recourse - 1,350
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BUENEE 40.
EREBA

REER ARERBTAMBEICE

40.

QPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future

HRYMELERAER T BRER 2 & minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
EHRSAENT: respect of rented premises as follows:

2006 2005

FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 2,100 2,712

E_EZERAFN In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,079 6.549

HBERF Over five years 1,188 8,698

5,367 17,959

RERHNFEREEZRAEREE Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

YEZERNEE-HONEEREET
THEHA=F MESNENERE
BEN-REE_FTTRE=A=T—
AUEEE ERE—-EBROMHBIOTN
FHAEERAFEARFLLZA
#ye

fEREBAA

BRCOECEAREITRR-FEZE
K RBAEBEHEERHT T HEL
2RO NTFBEEUEZ RRKE

for its office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms.
For the year ended 31 March 2005, there was a lease with a remaining
term of 48 years, such lease was early terminated by the Group during
the year.

As lessor

The properties held have committed tenants for the next two years.
The Group had contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease
payments under non-canceliable operating leases which fall due as

BT follows:
2006 2005
FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 3,280 1,228
F_EERFA In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,822 -~
5102 1,228

38 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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41, EERE 41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
REER ASBERETEEERR At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged certain assets with the

42,

43.

E-REEHERELERREFOZ
FER-ZEEEZHREENT:

following carrying values to secure the general credit facilities granted
to the Group and the margin accounts with brokers:

2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
BALIR FE W ER kA B Factored debtor balances 102,556 43,901
BIEBEZIRE BLOTE Investments held for trading at fair value 18,337 17,714
BERBIRET ZE RIENA  Margin deposits with brokers as included
IRz REERIZS in debtors, deposits and prepayments - 2,498 2,950
BAENTH 42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
FEBAEERBEERERLHER The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented by the Hong
BRI 2Bt B8 etElr Kong Government for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
BEEBYRAEBZEE HETES assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
ERE QR RABRZEBESERET funds under the control of trustee. The retirement benefit cost for
RAFEREBIREEESHEBIRES . the MPF charged to the income statement represents contributions
LR Z T HER payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.
FEATENBARZES 2T EET The employess employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of
TR RERNENTE KB %F the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
TENB AR ERIEETAE RE government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
RENECHN - FAEEHFHERKRE percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to
T8l 2 B RBRRIRZE TR T fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respact to
FEE AR the retirement benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.
FERABEE 43. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

RZBERFARAZT=R Zﬁﬁliﬁi
INABIALTRUWEELERAD
([ER]) +ABRAERMITZEE
& FECEEETT RERMIEERN
ERZHCBITRANS - BEANE
BEMKLZBERAE ERANER
RIEBAERT RE EENEERE
ETER-ZEXZRTRE BHEHR
FERke

On 23 June 20086, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with independent outsiders to acquire 150,000 existing
shares in Interforce Limited (“Interforce”), representing a 30% of the
entire issued share capital of Interforce, at a consideration of
HK$7,000,000. Interforce, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, together with its subsidiaries are engaged principally
in design, engineering, marketing and sale of consumer electronic
products. The transaction has not been completed as at the date of
this report.
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44, BEATRS 44,  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) MEFEN TEBFZREE (@) During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial
BREEARTERZ —IHEL shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal
WA B EHRE Z REREE guarantee to indemnify the Group for any impairment of an
ARREE-TLEEERL (= unlisted available-for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15
EERE: —ThagET) - million {2005: HK$15 millian).
AEBEBLNFETRESE- The Group maintained current accounts with associates. Their
RIBEERE=ZRA=+—8 & balances as at 31 March 2006 are set out in the consolidated
EREBRIE A B REER D I3 balance sheet with the terms disclosed in note 29.
RiE e BERBERN A9

by ZEEEEARZFH {b)  Compensation of key management personnel
ERNFEEBRAR NEEY Details of the remuneration of key management personnl,
& R IBEUR TR 11 which are the directors, during the year were set out in note

11.

‘E @@ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Torthe yEaT énded 31 March 2006 BIZE BB/ EZ A=+ —HL=H
5. ELEMEER 45.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPARNY
2006 2005
fibfra FET FET
Notes HKS$'000 HKS000
ERBEE Nan-current assets
FERMB ORISR Interest in subsidiaries 46 122,184 122,184
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 47 59 -
BAERE Investments in securities 48 - 94
122,243 122,278
REEE Current assets
BNHRIR Prepayments 1 7
FEULFI B 2 BIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 48 604,440 603,468
U K20 _J%ﬁ"\IE Amount due from an associate 29 2,800 2,800
BITEEERE Bank balances and cash 31 524 320
607,765 606,595
TEaE Current liabilities
FENERRESER Creditors and accrued charges 900 920
BB ARFE Amounts due to subsidiaries 48 165,644 122,356
166,544 123,276
REVEEFHE Net current assets g2 483,319
EESH Net assets 563,464 605,597
BARR G Capital and reserves
BRI Share capital 35 304,352 305,043
e Reserves 49 259,112 300,554
BREES Sharehelders’ funds 563,464 505,597
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 HRE-—RFAE=A=+—8LFE
6. BELMEL SR 46. INTEREST (N SUBSIDIARIES
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FELTIRRG REREE Unlisted shares, at carrying value 136,684 136,684
RIBEEE Impairment losses recognised (14,500) {14,500)
122,184 122,184
ELETRMZEREENBERATE— The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book value
NANETZ A KEEEFTEN AR of the underlying net assets of SIH Limited and its subsidiaries as at
ERIZAG N EEE SIH Limited R EL B 4 F) the date on which the Company became the ultimate haolding company
ZHEREAEREBNE- under the group recrganisation in December 1989.
RIEE /\$ R=-+—8 Eilk(E The fair value of amounts due from (to) subsidiaries as at 31 March
T MBLARRIEZ A FEEEERE 2006 approximates the corresponding carrying amount.
B85
RIFERFE-A=+—REZEMEL Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2006 are set out in note
Bl 2 S EERHTEES0 ¢ 50.

47. THEERE 47.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
RZZEXREZAZ+—8 AIfHE Available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2006 comprise equity
REBEEESRN LIRRAES securities listed outside Hong Kong, and are stated at fair value of
WARFERENTELEZS-ATE HK$53,000. The fair value was determined by reference to bid prices
EREZRTBHREAEBET- quoted in active markets.

48. BHILY 48. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

RZETAFZA=Z+—H EFHRE
PJ%ZJEE/% Ql\imﬁﬁﬂxzﬁ Lo

THEMNA—-BRATE I ERSE
39#1% RIBZER BHRREEFES
REE R

‘E 02 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Investments in securities as at 31 March 2005 comprised equity
securities listed outside Hong Kong. Upon the application of HKAS
39 on 1 April 2005, investment securities were reclassified to
appropriate categories under HKAS 39.
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For rhey%arﬁﬁed 31 March 2006 BE- FRAFZAZ +—BLEE
49, s 49. RESERVES
REEMAE BRERE RARERE
RoEE  EHE%  lnvestment Share Capital RirBH
Share  Contributed  revaluation option  redemption Accumulated Eh]
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FEL FEr T FEx TR i FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 KKk§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000
RISRMERA-E A1 Apri 2004 83,762 75,263 - - 46,985 89,13 295,165
BORL AR Premium on repurchase
of shares - - - - - (822 (822]
EOREESZ Capital redemption reserve
REEEHE arising from repurchase
of shares - - - - 8 (827 -
TEEER, Profit for the year - - - - - 18,204 48,244
BHBE Dividends paid - - - - - (42,033) (42,033
HIZTRE At 31 March 2005
ZE=Z+-E 83,762 75,263 - - 47812 93697 300,564
ARHERE Decrease in fair value of
REERD availablg for-sale investments - - (35] - - - {35)
ERLRr£E Recognition of equity ssttfed
RiitE share hased payments - - - 1392 - - 339
BREEGEN Isstug of sharss upon exercise
e of share options 40 - - - - - 405
EE%tz B8R Premium on repurchase
of shares - - - - - (1,266 {1,266
BERHEEY Capital redemption reserve
NEBEEEE arising from repurchase
of shares - - - - 2491 (24911 -
TEERE Loss for the year - - - - - (5,548 (5,948
Eﬁﬁ = Dividends paid - - - - - (37.970) (37.870)
RZBBRE At 31 March 2006
Zh=t-H 84,187 15,263 (35) 3392 50,303 45,002 59112
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 BEE -SSR AEZAZ+—BILEE

TEMLAE 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
RIBERE=A=Z+—B ZRQRZ Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2006
FEMBLEFENT: are as follows:
R ERITEER
b/ &% B BEEREXEE EREENG
Place of Nominal value of R
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
MEATER or registration/ share capital/  equity interest TEXH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
HEVER LR e 2ETT 100% HEER
ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HKS2 [nvestment holding
Cosmo Communications ER/MEX 15710007 914% EXERES
Corporation United States of US$1,571,000 RITEER
America/Canada Trading in electrical
appliances and
investment holding
XEFRAT BE 10,0003 7T 100% #REER
Ever Solid Limited Hang Kang HK$10,000 Investment holding
Gladman Investments Pte. FingARE B IR TT 100% BRBEHTEER
Limited Republic of Singapore/ S$2 Provision of administrative
Hong Kong SBrvices
Hyundai Household 5% BT 100% EBRERES
Improvement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading in electrical
appliances
BNBERERRAF EE 25,000,000 7T 100% 1REER
Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 Investment holding
Limited
ESIHEZERLE EFE BT 100% ERERES
Korrigan Marketing Limited Hong Kong HKS?2 Trading in television sets
EREEERAT EE VBT 100% HBEER
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Limited
YHEEFRAAF N 5,000,000 7T %% BERE
Merrygain Holding Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Property investment
Limited

ﬁj @4 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 B#E=FF-~F=A=+— EIJrQiFEM

0. TEMEAR (&) 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
oAt CRTEER
M E, BE /SREXEE FEBELNS
Place of Nominal value of BRER

RIBRE N

incorporation

issued ordinary

Attributable

MELRERE or registration/ share capital/  equity interest TEE¥
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital tothe Group  Principal activities
Newstar.com Limited EEHRREE 1ET 100% REZR
British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
Nice States nvestment & BT 100% MEHRE
Limited Hong Kong HKE2 Praperty investment
EBERLF &% VAT 100% REERROEEE
Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding and
property development
BREERLT &% LETT 100% #FRRE
Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$?2 Property investment
KAEBRFRAF HBER RS E 100% HREER
Ram Light Management British Virgin Islands UsS$1 Investment holding
Limited
Sheen United Technology HBEBRES 1= 100% REER
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
SIH Limited RBEARES 10,000/ 7T 100% #®EZK
British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 [nvestment holding
Skylight Technologies EBHBERARES 1= 100% KEER
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
EBETERAF S 15,090,000 7T 100% EFERES
Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
Star Fair Manufacturing ERE/F 125088 100% EFELREBER
Company Limited Jersey/PRC £12 Manufacture and sale of

electronic and plastic
products
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For the year ended 31 March 2006 BE-—FEA~FZA=+—HLEE

DATED

Lo

INANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ ~ =

TEMELE (B 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Fm e ERTEHBER
3 BRE/ZMEREE AEBEL
Place of Nominal value of iy 23
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
il PNGEE or registration/ share capital/  equity interest EEZLK
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
Star Legend Offshore RB4&RLRES 1= 100% REER
Limited British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
slands
Star Legend Technologies HEBRRRES 1E 100% RAEER
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
FREFERLF EE 13,000,000 7T 100% EFERES
Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
EERRERLE EE 2ETT 100% HREEK
Starleaf Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 Investment holding
Starlight eTech {Holdings) RELBRES 1% 100% HERR
Limited British Virgin Islands US$ Investment holding
FEHOBRAR EE 2B 100% 9%ERE
Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kong HKS2 Property investment
AREEERLE EE 73,920,192 7T 100% HREZR
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 Investment holding
Limited
Starlight Manufacturer EFEE/AE 100,000 7 100% EBEFEREERES
Limited Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 Manufacture and sale of
electronic products
FEMSERARAE BB BT 100% EBFEmES
Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$?2 Marketing in electronic
Development Limited products
HETSEERRAR = BT 100% RHESRETED
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$?2 g5

'5 06 STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
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50. FEMELT E)

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ErdiLg A R ERTERR
B s Bx ERESEE EEEERG
Place of Nominal value of RAER
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
MEARERE or registration/ share capital/  equity interest FEXK
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
FETSERERIER - dg 100,000 7T 0% ETERES
BRBEERRE Macau HK$100,000 Trading in electronic
Starlight Marketing Macao products
Commercial Offshore
Limited
Starlight Overseas Marketing ~ EERHTHE 1%E7T 100% EBEFERES
Limited Republic of Mauritius US$1 Trading in electronic
products
AHEBABRLF &k 10,000 7T 100% HEER
Starlight R&D Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 RETERERES
Material sourcing and
provision of
engineering services
AHEFGEER LT EE 4ET 100% AEBELFRERE
Starlight Video Limited Hong Kong HK$4 BEEREEERES
Provision of nominee
services for group
companies and trading
of video products
Starlite Consumer Elsctronics  BISEE 2ETT 100% EFERES
(USA) Inc. Cayman Islands HK$2 Trading in electronic
products
REREERAF o BT 100% ABEBLIEHS
Starshow Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 RIS
Pravision of nominee
services for group
companies
ESEXERLTF EE 4,000,0007% 7T 80% ZRBERBEREE
Success 3ase Industries Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Limited plastic products
Top Spring Technology HBHERTES 1E5T 100%  IREER
Limited British Virgin Islands US$" Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINARCIAL STATERMENTS

HERBREME

For the year ended 31 March 2006 EZE =S FAF=A=+—HLFE

5. EEMDLR E) 0. RINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EME I BRTEBR
M/ &%mnE BE EMELEE rEEBMNG
Place of Nominal value of B &
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
MEARERE or registration/ share capital/  equity interest EFEEXK
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
BNEBETHERERDA TR 33,300,000/ 7 100% BYERRERHEE
Starfair Manufacturing PRC* HK$33,300,000 Manufacture and sale of
{Panyu) Company Limited electronic products
RYABEFBRLF T £0,000,0005 7T 100% EBFERHEREE
Shenzhen Starlight PRC* HK$60,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Electronics Co. Ltd. electronic products
ERER AR ME RE ARH31,750,0007T 100% "EHER
BERAF PRC* RMB31,750,000 Property development
AREBEBRRERLAR PR 20,000,000/ 7T 80% ZRERRERKEE
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited plastic products
EREBESRMERRAR  #& 21,500,000 7T 100% BrERNERESE
Panyu Starfair Electronics PRC* HK$21,500,000 Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Company elsctronic products
Limited
* KB e Bt EEs ELE * The subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned enterprises.
EERRABLEFINEALTMBLAT The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
%$¢EZ¥%§EE§B’J%§ SRIEAK opinion of the directors, principally affsct the results of the year or
FEEEEFETERD -EERRL constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
IR E MBS TZE? B éﬂ give details of other subsidiaries would, in the apinion of the directors,
BRLK. result in particulars of excessive length.
R SIH Limited J2 Star Legend Offshore Limited Other than SIH Limited and Star Legend Offshore Limited which are
RERNTEEREIINIEEMNBL held directly by the Company, ail other subsidiaries are held indirectly
AR RREERF RAFENKAE by the Company. None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
FEAEMAREE HDEMBLIATEE outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the vear.
REBEEER
108
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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 RERBEE
BE=-A=+-BLEE
Year ended 31 March
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
FHET FHT FET FHET FET
HK$000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(%))
{Restated}
¥ RESULTS
B Turnover 932,781 1,379,372 1,837,045 1,647 423 1,820,300
Bia (B8 &F {Loss) profit before taxation {39,877) 61,425 101,603 58,768 90,691
i Taxation (242} (218} (720) (5,694) {11,452)
EEE (FE) a8 (Loss) profit for the year (40,119) 61,207 100,883 51,074 79,239
THALER: Attributable to:
RABRER Shareholders of the Company {39.832) 61,118 100,065 50,526 79,141
LEBREER Minority interests (287) 89 818 548 98
(40,119} 61,207 100,883 51,074 79,239
R=A=+-8
At 31 March
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
FEr FET TExT FEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$ 000
€27
(Restated)
BHEHREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEME Total assets 801,690 880,716 1,023,051 975,841 1,219,487
ffEREE Total liabilities 320,418 340,885 352,718 292,474 490,793
481,272 539,831 670,333 £83.367 128,694
AR BIRR RS Equity attributable to
g shareholders of the Company 480,814 539,284 568,968 681,814 721111
LR ERERS Minority interests 458 547 1,365 1,553 1,517
481,272 539,831 670,333 683,357 728,694

HE-ETRFZR=Z+—GULFEZFEE  Thefinancial information for the year ended 31 March 2005 has been restated
HEES UGS PIERES 2Rl ®st  toreflect the effect of changes in accounting policies as described in note 2

HRBEER ZEE

EHEZEE_F--F 1o the consolidated financial statements. The financial information for the

BFR-_FBENF-A=Z+T—HLEEFEZ  yearended 31 March 2002, 2003 and 2004 has not been adjusted.
IR ERWEIER AR
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BEHER
(FFR)
Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)

EBRERREEZREMX
Investment properties
held for rental purposes

YIEME
Nature

of property

TEHE
iR
Attributable
interest

to the Group

HODH

Category of lease

EAMBEEEEG TR 2,280
BEREEAE+=128-C D

Units B, Cand D on

13th Floor of

Guangdong Tours Centre

No. 18 Pennington Strest

Causeway Bay

Hang Kong

BEATREBENTRER 5,543
B N8

Unit A, 26th Floor

United Centre

No. 95 Queensway, Central

Hong Kong

ERERFEBTRES
BEBIEAET/\E
18th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

B=1TI% 12,079

EBERTEAETRES
WEIEXNEME
14th Floor

Sing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

B=1TIZ% 13,974

EREEETFEEFRE
WETERNE+T 2
12th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

TEZ=TIR 13,974

BEELEHERILENE 63,968
21 %3655,

1 1 ﬂ STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EES
Commercial

GES

Commercial

T

Industriat

T#
Industrial

I

Industrial

EES

Commercial

100%

100%

100%

100%

96%

100%

FHEHELD
Long leases

RFEHELH
Long leases

REHEHN

Long leases

REMMEYN
Long leases

REHELY
Long leases

REHEH

Long leases
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action you should
take, you should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank
manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Starlight International Holdings Limited,
you should at once hand this circular and the accompanying proxy form to the purchaser
or transferee, or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was
effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims

any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

SIARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FAREEBERERAAE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 485)

PROPOSALS INVOLVING T
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES:,™ &
AND TO ISSUE SHARES, :

~-

REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT, “* "1
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS AND N
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND -« - 5

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening an annual general meeting of Starlight International Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) to be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane, 310 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong on Monday, 18th September, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. is set out on pages 13 to
17 of this circular. Whether or not you propose to attend the meeting, you are requested to
complete the accompanying proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
and return the same to the head office and principal place of business of the Company at
5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong as soon as
possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding
of the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of a proxy form will

not preclude shareholders from attending and voting at the annual general meeting if
they so wish.

*  for identification purpose only

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2006



DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the context

requires otherwise:

“Annual General Meeting”,

//AGM//

“AGM Notice”

“Board”
“Bye-Laws”
“Companies Act”

“Company”

“Directors”

“Existing Scheme”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Ordinary Resolutions”

“Repurchase Proposal”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane, 310
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong on Monday, 18th
September, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. and/or any adjournment
thereof

the notice dated 31st July, 2006 convening the AGM
as set out on pages 13 to 17 of this circular

the board of Directors
the Bye-Laws of the Company for the time being
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

Starlight International Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

the directors of the Company

the existing share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 12th September, 2002

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

25th July, 2006, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain
information referred to in this circular

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the proposed ordinary resolution(s) as referred to in
the AGM Notice

the proposal to give a general mandate to the Directors
to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase
during the period as set out in the Repurchase
Resolution Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
passing of the Repurchase Resolution




DEFINITIONS

“Repurchase Resolution”

“Scheme Mandate Limit”

“Scheme Mandate Limit
Refreshment Proposal”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Special Resolution”

“Stock Exchange”
“Takeovers Code”

i“ HK$H

the proposed ordinary resolution as referred to in
resolution no. 5 of the AGM Notice

the maximum number of Shares that may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
the Existing Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company, which shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Existing Scheme

the proposal to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit
under the Existing Scheme

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws
of Hong Kong)

share(s) of HK$0.40 each in the share capital of the
Company

holders of the share(s)

the proposed special resolution as referred to in item
9 of the AGM Notice

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

SIARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
AREBRERAAF"

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 485)

Executive Directors: .

Lau Sak Hong, Philip (Chairman)
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk, Andy

Non-Executive Director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent Non-Executive Director:

Ho Hau Chong, Norman
Chan Chak Chung
Winston Calptor Chuck

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal
Place of Business:

5th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

232 Aberdeen Main Road

Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2006
To the shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS INVOLVING
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES,
REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT,
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with the information regarding the
proposed renewal of the general mandates to allot, issue and deal with Shares, extension
of such general mandate and to repurchase Shares, Scheme Mandate Limit Refreshment
Proposal and the proposed amendments to Bye-Laws and re-election of retiring directors
and to seek your approval of the resolutions relating to these matters at the AGM.

* for identification purpose only
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2. GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15th September, 2005, a
general mandate was given by the Company to the Directors to exercise the powers of the
Company to repurchase Shares. Such mandate will lapse at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 18th September, 2006.
The Directors propose to seek your approval of the Repurchase Resolution to be proposed
at the AGM details of which are set out in Ordinary Resolution no. 5 in the AGM Notice.
The Shares, which may be repurchased pursuant to the Repurchase Resolution, are Shares
representing up to 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital in issue as at
the date of passing the Repurchase Resolution. An explanatory statement as required
under the Listing Rules to provide the requisite information of the Repurchase Proposal is
set out in the Appendix I hereto.

3. GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

It will also be proposed at the AGM two ordinary resolutions respectively granting
to the Directors a general mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares not exceeding 20%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the resolution and
adding to such general mandate so granted to the Directors any Shares representing the
aggregate nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the Company after the granting
of the general mandate to repurchase Shares up to 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing the Repurchase Resolution.

Details of general mandate to issue Shares and the extension of such general mandate
are respectively set out in Ordinary Resolutions nos.6 and 7 in the AGM Notice.

4. REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT UNDER THE EXISTING
SCHEME

The Existing Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders in general
meeting on 12th September, 2002. The purpose of the Existing Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to participants, as incentives or rewards, for their contribution
so as to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The existing Scheme Mandate Limit under the Existing Scheme is 67,330,635 Shares
being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the adoption of the Existing Scheme on 12th
September, 2002. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has granted share options
carrying rights to subscribe for 59,765,000 Shares, of which no share options carrying
rights to subscribe for Shares have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Existing
Scheme which are not counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit. As a result,
the balance of share options carrying rights to subscribe for 7,565,635 Shares may be
granted under the Existing Scheme. Under the Existing Scheme, 13,200,500 Shares have
been issued pursuant to the exercise of the share options, no options carrying rights to
subscribe Shares have been cancelled and share options carrying rights to subscribe for
46,564,500 Shares remain outstanding and yet to be exercised. Apart from the Existing

—4-
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Scheme, the Company has no other share option scheme in issue as at the Latest Practicable
Date. The issue of the share options by the Company complied with the existing Scheme
Mandate Limit at all material times.

Pursuant to the paragraph 8.3 of the Existing Scheme, the Company may seek
approval from the Shareholders in general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit
provided that the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Existing Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. Share options previously granted under the Existing
Scheme, and other share option schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with the Existing Scheme or exercised) shall not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as renewed.

The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Existing Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company (adopted by the Company in general meeting from time to time)
must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

On the basis of 757,820,614 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and
assuming that no Shares are issued or purchased by the Company prior to the AGM, the
Scheme Mandate Limit may be “refreshed” to enable grant of further share options to
subscribe up to 75,782,061 Shares, representing 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
the AGM.

Since the number of share options that may be granted pursuant to the existing
Scheme Mandate Limit is small which is 7,565,635, the Directors consider that the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit will be in the interests of the Company as the
Existing Scheme can continue to serve its purpose of providing incentives to the participants
to work towards achieving the goals of the Group.

The refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit is conditional upon:

(1) the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders to approve the
Scheme Mandate Limit Refreshment Proposal at the AGM; and

(2)  the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and the permission to deal in, such
number of Shares representing 10% of the Shares in issue at the date of the
AGM, which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the share options
granted under the “refreshed” Scheme Mandate Limit.

Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the listing of and the permission
to deal in the Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of share options granted under
the “refreshed” Scheme Mandate Limit.
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5. AMENDMENTS TO BYE-LAWS

The Stock Exchange made certain amendments to the Listing Rules relating to the
Code on Corporate Governance practices and Corporate Governance Report which came
into effect on 1st January, 2005 and to the contents of the constitutional documents which
came into effect on 1st March, 2006.

Accordingly, the Directors propose to the Shareholders to pass the Special Resolution
at the AGM to amend the existing Bye-Laws in order to bring the Bye-Laws in line with
the requirements of the amended Listing Rules.

The proposed amendments, if duly passed, will have the followings effect:

(1)  the Company shall only be required to disclose the voting figures on a poll if
such disclosure is required by the Listing Rules, codes or regulations of the
Stock Exchange; and

(2)  a Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of members at a general
meeting.

6. RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors currently consists of seven Directors, namely Messrs. Philip
Lau Sak Hong, Anthony Lau Sak Kai, Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin, Norman
Ho Hau Chong, Chan Chak Chung and Winston Calptor Chuck.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 82 of the Bye-Laws, Messrs. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon
Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong shall retire from office at the AGM and shall be
eligible and offer themselves for re-election. Details of retiring Directors proposed for re-
election at the AGM are set out in the Appendix II of this circular.

7. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

On pages 13 to 17 of this circular, you will find the AGM Notice which contains,
inter alia, the Ordinary Resolutions to approve the Directors the Repurchase Proposal, the
grant of general mandate to issue Shares and the extension of such general mandate, the
Scheme Mandate Limit Refreshment Proposal and the re-election of retiring Directors and
the Special Resolution to amend the existing Bye-Laws.

8. RIGHTS TO DEMAND A POLL

At the AGM, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show
of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the
withdrawal of any other demand for a poll) a poll is duly demanded or unless, in the case
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of any share capital of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange, a poll is required to be
taken under the rules, regulations or codes of such stock exchange. Subject to the Companies
Act, a poll may be demanded by (a) the chairman of the meeting; or (b) at least three
members present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative or by proxy
and entitled to vote; or (c¢) any member or members present in person or by a duly
authorised corporate representative or by proxy and representing in the aggregate not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to attend and
vote at the meeting; or (d) any member or members present in person or by a duly
authorised corporate representative or by proxy and holding shares conferring a right to
attend and vote at the meeting on which there have been paid up sums in the aggregate
equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares conferring that
right.

On a show of hands, every member who is present in person or is present by a duly
authorised corporate representative or by proxy shall have one vote, and on a poll every
member present in person or, by a duly authorised corporate representative or by proxy
shall have one vote for every fully-paid share of which he is the holder. On a poll a
member entitled to more than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the votes he
uses in the same way.

9. ACTION TO BE TAKEN

A proxy form for use at the AGM is enclosed herein. Whether or not you intend to
attend the AGM, you are requested to complete the proxy form in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon and return it to the head office and principal place of business
of the Company, 5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM.
Completion and return of a proxy form will not preclude Shareholders from attending
and voting at the AGM if they so wish.

10. RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal, general mandate to issue new
Shares, extension of such general mandate, Scheme Mandate Limit Refreshment Proposal,
amendments to the Bye-Laws and re-election of the retiring Directors are all in the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend
that all Shareholders should vote in favour of the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice.

By Order of the Board
LAU SAK HONG, PHILIP
Chairman




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This appendix serves as an explanatory statement, as required by the Listing Rules,
to provide the requisite information to you for yvour consideration of the proposal to
permit the repurchase of Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing the Repurchase Resolution.

1. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised
757,820,614 Shares.

Subject to the passing of the Repurchase Resolution and on the basis that no further
Shares are issued or repurchased after the Latest Practicable Date and prior to the AGM,
the Company would be allowed under the Repurchase Resolution to repurchase a maximum
of 75,782,061 Shares.

2. REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. Such repurchase may, depending on market conditions
and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net assets and/or
earnings per Share of the Company and will only be made when the Directors believe that
such a repurchase will benefit the Company and the Shareholders.

3. FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for
such purpose in accordance with its memorandum of association and Bye-Laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda. The Companies Act provides that the amount of capital
repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only be paid out of either the capital
paid up on the relevant shares, or the profits that would otherwise be available for dividend
or the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose. The amount of premium
payable on repurchase may only be paid out of either the profits that would otherwise be
available for dividend or out of the share premium or contributed surplus accounts of the
Company.

There might be a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position
of the Company as compared with the position disclosed in the audited accounts contained
in the annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2006 in the event that the power to
repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal was to be carried out in full at
any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not propose
to exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal to such
extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working
capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the
Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company.




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

4. SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange
during each of the previous twelve months before the Latest Practicable Date are as follows:

Highest Lowest

HKS$ HKS$

July 2005 0.60 0.59
August 2005 0.58 0.58
September 2005 0.60 0.59
October 2005 0.57 0.57
November 2005 ‘ 0.70 0.69
December 2005 0.92 0.83
January 2006 0.99 0.98
February 2006 1.08 1.08
March 2006 1.18 1.15
April 2006 1.16 1.12
May 2006 1.18 1.13
June 2006 1.20 1.16
July 2006 (up to and including the Latest Practicable Date) 1.14 1.03

5. UNDERTAKING

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may
be applicable, they will exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant
to the Repurchase Proposal and in accordance with the Listing Rules, Bye-Laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), have any present intention
to sell any Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries under the Repurchase Proposal if the
Repurchase Proposal is approved by the Shareholders and exercised by the Board.

No connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) have notified the Company
that he has a present intention to sell Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries, or have
undertaken not to do so, in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the
Shareholders and exercised by the Board.

6. TAKEOVERS CODE

If on the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Proposal, a Shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company
increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 32 of the
Takeovers Code. As a result, a shareholder or group of Shareholders acting in concert
could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a
mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.
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At the Latest Practicable Date, Messrs. Philip Lau Sak Hong, Anthony Lau Sak Kai
and Andy Lau Sak Yuk and their associates, including companies and trust controlled by
them (“Lau’s Family”), held on a beneficial basis 327,949,164 Shares representing 43.28%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Based on such shareholdings and in the event
that the Directors exercised in full the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the
Repurchase Resolution, the shareholdings of Lau’s Family would be increased to
approximately 48.08% of the issued share capital of the Company. In the event the Directors
exercised in full the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal, an
obligation to make a general offer to shareholders under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code
may arise. The Directors have no present intention to exercise the power to repurchase
Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal to such an extent as to result in takeover
obligations.

In the event that the Repurchase Proposal is exercised in full, the number of Shares
held by the public would not fall below 25%.

7. SHARES REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

In the six months preceding the Latest Practicable Date, the Company repurchased
Shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Price per Share  Aggregate

Date of Repurchase Number of Shares  Highest Lowest Price
HKS$ HK$ HK$%

29th May, 2006 765,000 1.13 1.11 856,650
1st June, 2006 265,000 1.16 1.15 305,250
2nd June, 2006 850,000 1.16 1.16 986,000
7th June, 2006 180,000 1.15 1.15 207,000
8th June, 2006 170,000 1.15 1.14 195,400
13th June, 2006 830,000 1.14 1.11 928,200
3,060,000 3,478,500

Save as disclosed above, there was no other repurchase made by the Company, or
its subsidiaries, of the Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the six
months preceding the Latest Practicable Date.

-10 -




APPENDIX II DETAILS OF DIRECTORS TO BE RE-ELECTED

The following are the particulars of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM to be
held on 18th September, 2006:

Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, aged 56, was appointed executive director of the Company
since 26th September, 1989. He is in charge of the research and development of the Group
and has been in the Group for 34 years. Mr. Lau did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies during the three years preceding the Latest Practicable Date. Mr.
Lau is also a director of in a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Save as disclosed above,
he does not held any position of the Company and other companies within the Group.

He is the brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip and Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai, both
executive directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lau does not have any
relationships with the Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholder of the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau has personal interests and corporate
interests in 35,059,108 shares and 13,118,511 shares respectively within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lau is entitled to an annual remuneration package of HK$1,400,515. Such sum
was determined by the Board with reference to market terms, his duties and responsibilities
in the Group and the Group’s remuneration policy. He is also entitled to a year end
discretionary bonus determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having regard to
the Company’s performance and the marketing situation. There is no director’s service
contract entered into between the Company and Mr. Lau. He is not appointed for a
specific term and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-Laws. He is entitled to a director fee of not less than HK$50,000 per
annum which is subject to the approval of the Board by reference to the prevailing
marketing conditions and the shareholders’ approval at an annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 65, had been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 1988 and re-designated as non-executive director of the Company
on 28th September, 2004 . He has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 36
years. He is the Senior Partner of Messrs. Hon & Co., Solicitors & Notaries. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Automated Systems Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of Starlight Industrial Holdings Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. He is a member of audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in
other public listed companies in the last three years and does not hold any position in the
Company and other companies within the Group.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Hon has personal interests of 194,645 shares in
the Company within the meaning of PART XV of SFO. He does not have any relationship
with any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Hon is appointed for a term of two years until 30th September, 2007 and subject
to retirement and re-election provisions in the Bye-Laws. He is entitled to have a director
fee of HK$50,000 per annum which is subject to the approval of the Board by reference to
the prevailing market conditions and the shareholders” approval at an annual general
meeting. He is not entitled to any other emoluments including bonus.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 50, was appointed independent non-executive
director of the Company since 1st October, 1998. He is a member of audit committee of
the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience
in management and property development.

He is an executive director of Miramar Hotel & Investment Company Limited, an
independent non-executive director of CITIC Pacific Limited, Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings)
Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Limited, Shun Tak Holdings Limited, and as
well as a non-executive director of Tai Fook Securities Group Limited, New World Mobile
Holdings Limited and Macau Prime Properties Holdings Limited which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in other public
listed company in the last three years preceding the Latest Practicable Date and any
position on the Company and other companies within the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Ho did not have any relationship with any
Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company
and did not have any interest in Shares, within the meaning of Part XV of SFO.

Mr. Ho is appointed for a term of two years until 30th September, 2007 and subject
to retirement and re-election provisions in the Bye-Laws. He is entitled to have a director
fee of HK$50,000 per annum which is subject to the approval of the Board by reference to
the prevailing market conditions and the Shareholder’s approval at an annual general
meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing
Rules.

In the opinions of the Directors, other than the aforesaid matters, there is no other

matters need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in relation to the re-
election of the above retiring directors.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SIARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

AREBRERRZI

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 485)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of Starlight
International Holdings Limited will be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane,
310 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong on Monday, 18th September, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. for the
following purpose:

1.

To receive and consider the financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2006 and the reports of the directors and auditors.

To declare a final dividend.

To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of Directors.

To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix their
remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.40 each in
the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which the
shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended from time to
time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the
Directors of the Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

*  for identification purpose only
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()

for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period
from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:~

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by any applicable laws of
Bermuda or the Bye-Laws of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“"THAT:

(a)

(b)

(0)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares of HK$0.40 each in the capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including
bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end
of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue
of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company
from time to time; (iii) an issue of shares under any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of
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shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of
shares upon the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under
the terms of any warrants of the Company, shall not exceed 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by any applicable laws of
Bermuda or the Bye-Laws of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of options, warrants or
other securities giving right to subscribe for shares of the Company,
open for a period fixed by the Directors of the Company to holders of
shares of the Company, or any class of shares of the Company, whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company (and, where
appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company entitled to
the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of such
shares (or, where appropriate such other securities) as at that date (subject
to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory applicable to the Company).”
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As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions set out in items 5 and 6 of the
notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the Directors
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to the
Resolution set out in item 6 of the notice convening this meeting be and is
hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Company repurchased
by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution set out
in item 5 of the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount of
shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the said
Resolution.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the existing scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 12th September, 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
be refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of shares which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercise of the share
options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding share options previously
granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company) shall not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this
resolution (the “Refreshed Limit”) and subject to the Stock Exchange granting
the listing of and permission to deal in such number of shares to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the share options granted under the Refreshed
Limit and compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised
to grant share options under the Share Option Scheme up to the Refreshed
Limit and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with the shares pursuant to the exercise of such share options.”
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9. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as a special resolution of the Company:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT the Bye-Laws of the Company be and are hereby amended in the
following manner:

(a) Bye-Law 60
by inserting the following sentence as the last sentence of Bye-Law 60:

“The Company shall only be required to disclose the voting figures on a
poll if such disclosure is required, in case of any share capital of the
Company is listed on a stock exchange, under the rules, regulations or
codes of such stock exchange.”

(b) Bye-Law 78

by deleting the words “special resolution” in the first sentence of Bye-

I

Law 78 and replacing them with the words “ordinary resolution”.

By Order of the Board
Peter Lee Yip Wah

Secretary
Hong Kong, 31st July, 2006.
Notes:
1. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or

more proxies to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a proxy form, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which
it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the head office and principal
place of business of the Company at 5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

3. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 13th September, 2006 to
Monday, 18th Septémber, 2006, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with share registrars of the Company in Hong Kong,
Secretaries Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Tuesday, 12th September, 2006.

4. The retiring directors standing for re-election under item 3 are Messrs. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon
Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong.

5. As at the date of this notice, the board of directors of the Company comprised Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip
(Chairman), Mr. Lau Sak Kai, Anthony and Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy as executive directors; Mr. Peter
Hon Sheung Tin as non-executive director and Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman, Mr. Chan Chak Chung and
Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck as independent non-executive directors.
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STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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E:-@m.%er

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Stock Code: 485 v Y
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of Starlight
International Holdings Limited will be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor,
The Park Lane, 310 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong on Monday, 18th
September, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purpose:

1.

To receive and consider the financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2006 and the reports of the directors and auditors.

To declare a final dividend.

To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise the board of Directors
to fix the remuneration of Directors.

To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix

* their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
tesolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT: )

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
repurchase shares of HK$0.40 each in the capital of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) or on any ather stack exchange on which the shares
of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange
for this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
the Directors of the Company is authorised to repurchase
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of passing this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means
the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever
is'the earliest of:~

(i)  the conclusion of the 'next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within whxch the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by any
applicable laws of Bermuda or the Bye-Laws of the
Company to be held; and

(iii) -the date on which the authority set out in this resolution

is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT: '

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares of HK$0.40 each in the
capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (inciuding bonds, warrants and debentures
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exarcise of such power be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might require the
exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
" conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends
pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company from time to time;
(iii) an issue of shares under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of
shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company; or (iv) an
issue of shares upon the exercise of rights of subscription or
conversion under the terms of any warrants of the Company,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the da[e of passmg

thin Danalusina  acd sla aaid

“Rights Issue” meaiis an off rmf shares or}rssue ‘5 Sptions, -
warrants or other securities giving nght to subscribe for shares
of the Company, open for a period fixed by the Directors of the
Company to holders of shareg of the Company, or any class of
shares of the Company, whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company (and, where appropriate, to holders
of other securities of the Company entitled to the offer) on a
fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of such shares
(or, where appropriate such other securities) as at that date
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements

- of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in,
any territory applicable to the Company).”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions set out in items 5 and 6
of the notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to
the Directors of the Company to-allot, issue and deal with additional
shares pursuant to the Resolution set out in item 6 of the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition

thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of "~

shares in the capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution set out in item 5
of the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount of
shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of -the issued share capltal of the Company as at the date of
passing the said Resolution.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the existing scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting
of share options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12th September,
2002 (the “Share Option Scheme™) be refreshed and renewed provided
that the total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
pursuant to the grant or exercise of the share options under the Share
Option Scheme (excluding share options previously granted,
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company) shall not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
passing of this resolution (the “Refreshed Limit™) and subject to the
Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in such
number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the share
options granted under the Refreshed Limit and compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, the
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to grant share
options under the Share Option Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit
and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal

.with the shares pursuant to the exercise of such share options.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolution as a special resolution of the Company:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT the Bye-Laws of the Company be and are hereby amended in
the following manner:

(a) Bye-Law 60

by inserting the following sentence as the last sentence of Bye-
Law 60:

“The Company shall only be required to disclose the voting
figures on a poll if such disclosure is required, in case of any
share capital of the Company is listed on a stock exchange,
under the rules, regulations or codes of such stock exchange.”

{(b) Bye-Law 78

by deleting the words “special resolution” in the first sentence
of Bye-Law 78 and replacing them with the words “ordinary
resolution”.”

éy Order of the Board
Peter Lee Yip Wah
Secretary

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2006.

Notes:

1.

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him, A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a proxy form, together with any power of attorney or other authority
(if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be
deposited at the head office and principal place of business of the Company at
5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong
not less than 48 Hours"¥efore the time annoinred for holdino the meatine nr anv
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and Futures' Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange
for this purpose, subject to ‘and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the réquirements of the Rules Governmg the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchinge or of any other stock
-exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby

- generally and uncondmonally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of- shares of the Company which -
;the. Directors of the Company-is’ ‘authorised to repurchase
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shali
not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of passing this
Resolution and the said approval shall be llmtted accordmgly,»
and - .
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for. the | purpOses of this Resolution “Relevant Period“ means

-is'the earl:est ofi—

- (i) the conclusxon of the’ next annual general meenng of the
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AT . Y

the expiration of the perlod wrthm which the next apnuil *
- general meeting: of the Company is' required by -any -
~applicable laws of Bermuda or the Bye-Laws of the
Company to be held; and - L

i)

E (i)

the date on which the authonty set out in thls resolutlon :
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolutron of the
shareholders of the Company in general meetmg

L

‘As specral busmess ‘1o consider and, if thought fit, pass the followmg

resolutton as an ordmary resolutlon of the Company . R 9.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION j

subJect to paragraph (c) of thlS resolutlon the exercise by the_
Direcfors 6f the Company during the Relevant Period (as -

" hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot;
.issue-and deal with additional shares of HK$0.40 each in the
capital of the Company and to make ‘or grant offers, agreemeénts -

- and opuons (including bonds, warrants and debentures

. convertible into shares of the Company) which would or-might,

" require the exercise of such power be and is’ hereby generally
dnd uncondmonally approved; . - ”

(a).

the. approval in paragraph (a) of this resolutron shall authonse :
the Directors of the Company during the' Relevant Period (as -
hereinafter. defined) to make or grant offérs, agreements and
options “(including bonds, warrants and débentures convertible
... . into shares of the Company) which would or. might require the
exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capltal allotted or agreed -
condmonally orunconditionally to be allotted (Whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the .
. Company’ pursuant to the approval -in paragraph (a) of this

“~. resolution,, otherwise than pursuant to'(i) a nghts Issue (as.

- ' hereinafter. deﬁned) (ii).an issue of shares as scnp d1v1dends
" pursuant to, the Bye-Laws of the Company from time to time;.

*(iil) anissue”of shares under any option scheme -or similar- 1~_"

arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of "
shares or rights to acquire shares of the: Company;:or (iv) an

- - issue of shares upon the exercise-of rights of ‘subscription or’ R 2.

“-'<+ conversion_under the terms of any warrants of the Company,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the’

+ issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing
‘this’ Resolution,. and- the sa1d approVal shall be llrmted

. accordmgly, and S - LT v
L

for the’ purpose of thls l;esolutlon. -

.“Relevant Period” means the period’ from the passing Qf thts v
Resolution until: whtchever is the earliest of: .

i) . the conclusron of the next annual general meetmg of the
: ‘Company, L e : I’ i -

(i)
.. general meeting of the Company is required by any"

applicable Jlaws of Bermuda or the Bye Laws of the

- Company to be held; and :

(i)

. is'révoked or varied by an ordmary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in. general meetmg, and *

ol T [ ~

JHong Kong, 315t July, 2006 ) L . T

) Note: - ;

4.
the explratlon of the perrod within whrch the next annual -

the date on Wh'Ch the authorlty set Out m [hls Resolutlon e .thston ‘Calptor Chuck as mdependent non- executlve dtrectors L

sharcs In the capital of the LOompany repurcnased Dy th¢ Lompany
under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution set out in item 5
of the notice convening this meeting,; provided that such amount of _
shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal

. amount of the issued.share eapttal of the Company as at the date of -
passmg the said Resolution.” : -

As special business, to consrder and, if thought fit, pass the following
+ resolution. as an ordinary. resoluuon of the Company :

. ORDINARY RESOLUTION S - -

. “THAT the exrstmg scheme mandate limit in respect of the grantmg
of share options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the
share optlon scheme_adopted by the Company on 12th September,

*.2002 (the “Share Option Scheme™) be refreshed and renewed provided

" - that the total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
‘the period from the passmg of thrs Resolutlon until’ whlcheverg_ s

. pursuant to the grant or exercise of the share options under the Share .
. Option Scheme. (excluding share options previously granted,

,, . outstanding,"cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share ‘Option

Scheme ‘and other share option schemes of the Company) shall not
“exceed 10% of the shares-of the Company in issue as at the date of
passing of this resolution (the “Refreshed. Limit”) and subject to the
-+ Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in such

number of shares’to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the share
 options granted under the Refreshed Limit and compliance with the
. Rules.Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, the

Directors of the Conipany be and are hereby authorised-to grant share.

" options under the Share:Option Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit -

and to exercise all:the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal

.with the shares pursuant to'the exerc1se of such share options.”

As special busmess to.consider and if thought fit, pass the followmg
resolutton asa specral resoluuon -of the Company

.- | SPECIAL RESOLUTION

b“THAT the Bye Laws of the Company be and are hereby amended in .
.the followrng manner

(a) *Bye Law 60

. by inserting the followmg sentence as the last sentence of Bye- o
‘Law 60: ~ . - -

“The Company shall only be requxred to dtsclose the votmg
flgures on a poll if such disclosure:is fequired, in case of any
share capital of the Company is listed on a stock exchange

. under the rules regulanons or codes of such stock exchange ’

(b).. Bye-Law 78

,‘ by deleting the words * specta] resolution” in the ﬁrst sentence-
. of Bye-Law 78 and replacmg them wnh the words *ordinary

LS

. resolutton : . -y

DR -ByOrderoftheBoard
o o T . *. Peter Lee Yip Wah =

"Secretary”

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies'to attend and voie mstead of him. A -
- proxy need not be-a member of the Company . e s -
To be’ valtd a proxy form, together with any-power of attomey or other authority
(if any) under-which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof must be -
-deposited at the -head office and prmcxpal place of business of thé Company at-
5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong
not legs than 48 hours before the ttme appomted fof holdmg the meetmg or any
. .adJoumment thereof‘ s

e L. 0.

° The regtster of’ members of- the Compary will be closed from Wednesday, 13th
September,-2006 to Monday, 18th September, 2006, both days inclusive, during

- which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In"order to qualify for the

" proposed final dividend; all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant

" share certifi¢ates must be lodged with share registrars of the Company'in Hong

* Kong, Secretaries Limited, 26th-Floor, Tesbury ‘Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East

-’Hong Kong not later than 4 00 p.m. on Tuesday, thh September. 2006, .

The renrmg dlrectors standing for re- electlon under item 3 are Messrs Andy i
- Lau Sak Yuk Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong

As at the date of thrs notxce the board of drreclors of thé: Company comprtsed
Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip (Chairman), Mr. Lau Sak Kai,"Anthony. and Mr. Lau
" ! Sak Yuk, Andy as executive directors; Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin as non-executive -
director and Mr. Ho -Hau Chong, Norman, Mr, Chan Chak Chung and Mr

for ldennfcanan purpase anly e T
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